
 

City of Alvin, Texas  
 

Paul Horn, Mayor 
 

Glenn Starkey, Mayor Pro-tem, District D Adam Arendell, District B 

Brad Richards, At Large Pos. 1 Keith Thompson, District C 

Joel Castro, At Large Pos. 2 Gabe Adame, District E 

Martin Vela, District A  
 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  

THURSDAY, JANUARY 16, 2020 

 7:00 P.M.  
 (Council Chambers) 

 

Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Secretary’s Office at 281-388-4255 

or droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the front 

east entrance to City Hall.  
 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting and Executive Session of the City Council of the City 

of Alvin, Texas, to be held on THURSDAY, JANUARY 16, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers at: City Hall, 216 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will automatically 

become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 
 

A. Consider approval of the December 19, 2019 City Council meeting minutes. 
 

B. Consider a final plat of Mustang Ridge Section 2 (located along the east side of Mustang Road 

and south of the Nelson Road intersection), being a Planned Unit Development subdivision 

containing 15.916 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 225, 

in the City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

C. Consider a final plat of Nickels 1462 Addition (located southeast of the intersection of FM 

1462 and Skyranch Drive), a subdivision containing 1.816 acres, being a replat of lot 4-A of 

the A.J. Owen Subdivision part of Myles O’Donnell Survey, Abstract No. 489, Brazoria 

County, Texas. 
 

D. Consider a final plat of Warehouse Business Park (2443 N. Gordon Street), being a 

subdivision of 29.0369 acres of land situated in the Hooper and Wade Survey, Section 21, 

Abstract No. 421, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

E. Consider a License Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property between the City of Alvin 

and the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation for the Music Festival and Bar-B-Q Cook-off to be 

held at Briscoe Park from Friday March 27, 2020 thru Sunday, March 29, 2020; and authorize 

the City Manager to sign said agreement. 
 

mailto:droberts@cityofalvin.com
mailto:droberts@cityofalvin.com


AGENDA - 2 -                                        January 16, 2020  

 
F. Consider Resolution 20-R-01, finding that the Frontier Day event serves a public purpose for 

the City of Alvin and approving a multi-year agreement with the Texas Department of 

Transportation for the temporary closure of a portion of Business 35 (Gordon Street) for the 

parade; authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement; and setting forth other provisions related 

thereto. 
 

G. Consider Resolution 20-R-02, finding that the Home for the Holidays event serves a public 

purpose for the City of Alvin and approving a multi-year agreement with the Texas 

Department of Transportation for the temporary closure of a portion of Business 35 (Gordon 

Street) for the parade; authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement; and setting forth other 

provisions related thereto. 
 

H. Consider an Agreement with Horizon International Group LLC, through the Choice Partners 

Cooperative Purchasing Network, to provide and install a 100 - ton chiller and 7.5 HP 

recirculating pump, both as a direct replacement of existing equipment at the Alvin Police 

Department, in an amount not to exceed $180,306.00; and authorize the City Manager to sign 

the Agreement upon legal review. 
 

I. Acknowledge receipt of the 2019 Quarterly Investment Report ending December 31, 2019.  
 

5. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider the 2020 Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Services with Brazoria County 

Emergency Services District #3 (ESD); and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review. 
 

B. Consider Ordinance-20-B amending Chapter 24-1/2, Manufactured Homes and 

Manufactured Home Parks, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, for the purpose 

of amending Article V. Recreational Vehicle Parks and Resorts, by not allowing for the 

construction of new Recreational Vehicle Resorts; providing for a penalty; and setting forth 

other provisions related thereto. 
 

6. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  
 

A. Items of Community Interest and review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
 

7. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Pursuant to 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code reports or an announcement about items of community interest during a 

meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 

 

A. Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council 

members, and City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken. 

 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

City Council will meet in Executive Session pursuant to the Texas Government Code:  
 

A. Section 551.072: Deliberation regarding the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 

properties: 
 

1. Land purchase of property near Briscoe Park 

2. Land purchase of property near City Hall 
 

9. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

A. Take action on Executive Session item(s) if necessary.   
 



AGENDA - 3 -                                        January 16, 2020  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 

accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 

551, Texas Government Code, on MONDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020 at 5:45 P.M.  
  

 

          _______________________________  

 Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

 

Removal Date: ______________________ 

 

 

 
 

 

       
** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session (closed to the public) under 
the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to convene into executive session on any of the above posted 
agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited 
to sections 551.071 (litigation and certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to 
city), 551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/


MINUTES 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

  216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

THURSDAY DECEMBER 19, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 

Regular Session at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 

present: Mayor Paul A. Horn; Mayor Pro-Tem Glenn Starkey; Councilmembers: Gabe Adame, Adam 

Arendell, Joel Castro, Brad Richards, Keith Thompson and Martin Vela.   

 

Staff members present:  Junru Roland, City Manager; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 

Roberts, City Secretary; Michael Higgins, Chief Financial Officer; Michelle Segovia, City Engineer; 

Brandon Moody, Interim Public Services Director and Robert E.  Lee, Police Chief.  

 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Ari’ Anna Cole, Alvin High School Choir, gave the invocation in song to “Oh Holy Night.”   
 

Council member Starkey led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag; and Council member 

Thompson led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 

  

PUBLIC HEARING 

Second of two required public hearings to receive comment on the proposed voluntary annexation of 

a piece of land described as a tract containing 5.058 acres out of lot number twenty-nine (29) of the 

Willdford and Arnim Subdivision of Section 10 H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract 478, Brazoria County, 

Texas. Along with that certain portion of County Road 161 (right-of-way 60 feet in width) recorded in 

volume 1069 page 371 of the Brazoria County Deed Records adjoining said 4.678-acre tract. 
Blake and Kelley Lacy are petitioning the City to annex approximately 5.058 acres of land, located at 3513 County Road 161, for the 

purpose of developing the tract by constructing a multi-phase business park.  

 

Resolution 19-R-40 adopted by City Council on November 7th set two public hearings for December 5, 2019, and December 19, 2019.  

The first public hearing was held on December 5th, there were no public comments made.  This is second of the two required public 

hearings.   

 

A special meeting will be held on January 9, 2020 for the final approval of this voluntary annexation. 

 

Mayor Horn opened the public hearing at 7:07 p.m. There were no comments made. Mayor Horn 

closed the public hearing at 7:08 p.m. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

City Council Chambers Seat Dedication in memory of Jeannette Stuksa. 

Mayor Horn and the members of Council dedicated a seat in memory of Jeanette Stuksa; members of 

the Stuksa family were in attendance for the dedication.  

 

Alvin Police Department Annual Update. 

Robert Lee, Police Chief, gave an update on the Police Department.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no comments from the public.  
 

 

 

 

 



MINUTES - 2 -                                    December 19, 2019 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Consider approval of the December 5, 2019 City Council meeting minutes. 
 

Acknowledge receipt of the Quarterly Financial Report ending September 30, 2019. 
 

Consider the resale of trust property located on Wolford Lane, A0420 Hooper & Wade, Tract 11A-

11A2, .0136 Acres, for the sum of $2,700 – Account #0420-0103-130. 
Section 34.05 of the Texas property Tax Code states that the taxing entity that is holding the property in trust for itself and the other 

taxing entities, may sell the property at a private sale. If the property is sold for less than the amount due in the judgment of the market 

value specified in the judgment, consent is required from each taxing entity that is entitled to receive proceeds from the sale under the 

judgment.  

 

In this case, a tract of land located within the Alvin City limits is being held in trust by Brazoria County for all taxing entities that are 

owed back taxes on the site. The offer on the property is less than the judgment due, therefore the Property Tax Resale Committee of 

Brazoria County is requesting approval by all governing bodies. The resale committee, comprised of five members and listed on the 

property information sheet attached, have already considered the amount due, the bid amount, value, and the duration the property 

has been held in trust.  

 

The property is located on Wolford Lane (A0420 Hooper & Wade, Tract 11A-11A2), as shown in the supporting documents.   Wolford 

Lane is a private road and no address has been assigned to this property.  The property is located along West Highway 6 behind what 

used to be the Santa Barbara Restaurant. 

 

There is a private street/gravel driveway (Wofford Lane) within this property, that appears to have always been owned by an individual, 

probably the same individual that divided the property into lots originally. From a land division standpoint, the tract that this road is 

in does not go anywhere. The property owners that have access from this road most likely have an access agreement.  If the buyer were 

to block their access, they would have a legitimate claim since the road has been used by all surrounding property owners for numerous 

years to access their properties. Staff feels that this isn’t a situation where the City needs to step in, especially since it would be difficult 

and costly to make it comply with our subdivision ordinance, and we would be accepting maintenance of the roadway, which is 

currently a narrow dirt driveway.  

 

The tax judgment of $4,450.45 represents the taxes, penalty and interest due from 2008–2012 for all taxing entities. There is also a 

post judgment tax amount of $1,548.95 from  2013 – 2015, for a combined total tax due to all entities of $5,999.40, in which $1,699.10 

is due to the City of Alvin.  

 

Brazoria County is seeking City Council’s approval on a property tax resale as follows:  

 
The amount of the offer to Brazoria County is $2,700.00.  However, the amount available for distribution to the taxing entities is 

$1,593.98 after deducting $1,106.02 in court costs; and covers all pre and post judgment taxes due to all entities.  As a result, the pro 

rata amount the City of Alvin will receive is $454.30. 

 

The redemption time period expired July 21, 2015, in which the current property owners had an opportunity to reclaim the property. 

This did not occur. 

 

City staff have reviewed and there are no impending public projects or obvious public needs for the property to try pursuing City 

ownership.  Staff recommends approval of this tax resale. 

 

Land Value:  $ 5,830 

Total Taxes due (from all entities): $5,999.58 

City of Alvin Taxes due: $1,699.28 

Offer:  $2,700 (to be distributed) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Net to Distribute to Taxing Entities 

Brazoria 

County 

15.50% $247.06 

Alvin ISD 44.11% $703.05 

ACC 6.67% $106.27 

BC C&R#3 5.23% $83.30 

City of Alvin 28.50% $454.30 

Total 100% $1,593.98 



MINUTES - 3 -                                    December 19, 2019 

 
Council member Castro moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Seconded by Council 

member Thompson; motion to approve carried on a vote of 6 Ayes. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

Consider Resolution 19-R-43, for the re-appointment of directors on the Kendall Lakes TIRZ Board 

and Authority Board for odd numbered positions #1, #3, #7, and #9 from December 31, 2019 to 

December 31, 2021; and the appointment of Ricky Kubeczka as chairman. 
The Kendall Lakes Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) was created in 2005 to assist in the development of Kendall 

Lakes, a residential, commercial, and industrial area on the north side of the City of Alvin. There is a tax increment that 

is used for providing the needed infrastructure for the site through the ability of using bond proceeds. The TIRZ Authority 

and Board have the responsibility to develop policies that ensure good quality development for this site. TIRZ board 

members serve staggered even and odd year terms. Those positions up for re-appointment are Position #1 held by Lindsey 

Vaughn, Position #3 held by Alfred Froberg, Position # 7 held by Ron Mercer and Position #9 held by Ricky Kubeczka. 

The Chair of both the Board and Authority is Ricky Kubeczka and this position is reappointed each year. Staff 

recommends the current directors be reappointed in their respective terms that would expire December 31, 2021, and to 

reappoint Ricky Kubeczka as the Chair of both the TIRZ and Authority Boards. 

 

Council member Castro moved to approve Resolution 19-R-43, re-appointing Position #1 held by 

Lindsey Vaughn, Position #3 held by Alfred Froberg, Position #7 held by Ron Mercer and Position 

#9 held by Ricky Kubeczka to the Kendall Lake TIRZ Board and Authority who’s terms will expire 

December 31, 2021, and to reappoint  Ricky Kubeczka as Chair of both the TIRZ and the Authority 

Board.  Seconded by Council member Starkey; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  

 

Consider the approval of the final payment of $207,462.62 to the Texas Department of Transportation 

for the City of Alvin’s 2005 Bridge Replacement Project, CCSJ 0912-31-203. 
In 2005, the City entered into an Advanced Funding Agreement with TxDot for the following Bridge Replacements in the City: 

CR 149 

Old Galveston Road 

o South Street 

o Adoue Street 

 

The following is the chronology of events for the Bridge Project: 
 

• May 2011 – first substantive meeting discussing the bridge projects after initial project was suspended in 2009/2010 – City to obtain 

ROW for all 4 bridges 
 

• July 2012 – TxDot let the project and opened the bidding.  At this point, the City had only obtained ROW for Adoue and South 

Streets.   
 

• May 2013 – Adoue Street Bridge completed 
 

• November 2013 – South Street Bridge completed 

 

• November 2013 – “time suspended” due to lack of ROW obtained on CR 149 and Old Galveston Road (condemnation proceedings 

and other issues with property owners occurring during this time) 
 

• October/November 2014 – Council approves Old Galveston Road and CR 149 easements 

• February/March 2015 – construction begins on Old Galveston Road and CR 149 Bridges 
 

• October 2015 – Old Galveston Road Bridge completed 
 

• February 2016 – CR 149 Bridge completed 
 

• January 2017 – Contractor submits a Change Order to TxDot for costs incurred and associated with the delay as a result of the Right 

of Way being obtained for CR 149 and Old Galveston Road (as provided for in the 2005 Advanced Funding Agreement).   
 

• August 2017 – the City received and signed the Change Order from TxDot in the amount of $221,922.77, owed by the City for the 

delay costs incurred by not having the ROWs on CR 149 and Old Galveston Road.   TxDot was then to close the project and obtain a 

final request from the City for the payment.  

 

On or about October 30, 2019, the City received the Final Invoice from TxDot, in the amount of $207,462.62.  The sales tax street fund 

will be used for the payment of this invoice.  Staff recommended approval of the payment to the Texas Department of Transportation. 



MINUTES - 4 -                                    December 19, 2019 

 
 

Council member Thompson moved to approve the final payment of $207,462.62 to the Texas 

Department of Transportation for the City of Alvin’s 2005 Bridge Replacement Project, CCSJ 0912-

31-203.  Seconded by Council member Starkey; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  

 

Authorize disbursement to Magna Flow Environmental, Inc. for digester basin cleaning services at 

the Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $161,830.20 for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Optimization Phase II Project. 
Magna Flow Environmental, Inc. invoice 58158 includes services that were rendered to clean out digester basins three, four, and five 

at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  These cleaning services were required to allow the contractor working on the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant Optimization Phase II Project to complete the scope of work that was required within each of the three basins.  This 

work allowed the WWTP Project to move forward without the need for the contractor to demobilize, only to remobilize a few weeks 

later to complete the work. Three (3) quotes were received, with Magna Flow having the lowest price. 

 

SET Environmental:  $379,800.00 

Hydrokinetics:          $256,573.80 

Magna Flow:           $161,830.20 

 

The three basins have been in service continually for the last 20 years and therefore have not had the opportunity to be completely 

cleaned out, resulting in a large amount of sludge/grit build up in each basin.  Staff recommended approval of the payment Magna 

Flow Environmental, Inc.    

 

Council member Starkey moved to authorize the disbursement to Magna Flow Environmental, Inc. 

for digester basin cleaning services at the Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $161,830.20 

for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Optimization Phase II Project.  Seconded by Council member 

Richards; motion carried on a vote of 4 Ayes and 2 Nos by Council member Adame and Castro.  

 

Consider Resolution 19-R-44, accepting the donation of $10,000 in gift cards from CTSLW LTD, LP 

to the Alvin Police Department to be used to assist needy families. 
CTSLW LTD, LP contacted the Police Department wanting to make a donation for a program whereby officers could assist those in 

need. He was advised that gift cards would be the best vehicle for giving out assistance, as gift cards can be used for food, gas, etc.  

 

The donor far surpassed our expectations when they provided $10,000 worth of gift cards to the Police Department for this purpose.  

The Police Department will keep these gift cards and they will be made available to supervisors to be dispensed as intended, when 

needy individuals/families are identified through our day-to-day operations. A policy determining who qualifies and for how much will 

be put in place, along with tracking of the gift cards, once Council has passed this Resolution accepting the donation for such a 

program.  Staff recommended  approval of Resolution 19-R-44. 

 

Council member Castro moved to approve Resolution 19-R-44, accepting $8,800 in Gift Cards from 

CTSLW LTD, LP for the Alvin Police Department to use to assist needy families. Seconded by 

Council member Richards; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  

 

Consider Ordinance 19-DD, amending the City of Alvin Fiscal Year-End budget (FY19) by 

increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) certain revenues to the 

budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached Exhibit “A.” 
Each fiscal year, the City amends the budget twice.  In the Spring (mid-fiscal year), the City amends the budget to appropriate any 

prior year budget surplus to fund new capital items.  In the Fall (fiscal year-end), the City amends the budget to appropriate or adjust 

(authorized/approved) revenues and/or expenditures which occurred during the year that were not originally budgeted.  Reason being, 

under certain circumstances, staff has more definite revenue and cost information at year end. 

 

FY19 has ended and staff needs to make budget adjustments as a way to put the final FY19 budget in line with actual (approved and/or 

authorized) revenues and expenditures for financial reporting purposes.  Per the City’s auditor’s recommendation, the City should do 

a batch budget amendment at the end of the fiscal year to capture expenditures and/or revenues from the year that require a budget 

amendment.  Staff recommended approval of Ordinance 19-DD. 

 

Council member Thompson moved to approve Ordinance 19-DD, amending the City of Alvin FY19 

Fiscal Year End budget by increasing (decreasing) certain expenditures and increasing (decreasing) 

certain revenues to the individual budget accounts in all funds set forth in the attached Exhibit “A.”  



MINUTES - 5 -                                    December 19, 2019 

 
Seconded by Council member Richards; motion carried on a vote of 5 Ayes and 1 No by Council 

member Castro.  

 

Consider Ordinance 19-EE, amending the City of Alvin FY19 budget for the purpose of appropriating 

$2,353,177.95 of prior fiscal year outstanding encumbrances into the current fiscal year as set forth 

for each individual account in the attached Exhibit “A.” 
Each fiscal year, the City amends the budget twice.  In the Spring (mid-fiscal year), the City amends the budget to appropriate any 

prior year budget surplus to fund new capital items.  In the Fall (fiscal year-end), the City amends the budget to appropriate or adjust 

(authorized/approved) revenues and/or expenditures which occurred during the year that were not originally budgeted.  Reason being, 

under certain circumstances, staff has more definite revenue and cost information at year end. 

 

FY19 has ended and staff needs to make budget adjustments as a way to put the final FY19 budget in line with actual (approved and/or 

authorized) revenues and expenditures for financial reporting purposes.  Per the City’s auditor’s recommendation, the City should do 

a batch budget amendment at the end of the fiscal year to capture expenditures and/or revenues from the year that require a budget 

amendment.  Staff recommended approval of Ordinance 19-DD. 

 

Council member Starkey moved to approve Ordinance 19-EE, amending the City of Alvin FY19 

budget for the purpose of appropriating $2,353,177.95 of prior fiscal year outstanding encumbrances 

into the current fiscal year as set forth for each individual account in the attached Exhibit “A.” 

Seconded by Richards; motion carried on a vote of 5 Ayes and 1 No by Council member Vela.  

 

Consider the cancellation of the January 2, 2020 regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 
Thursday, January 2, 2020 all non-emergency city offices will be closed in observance of the New Year’s holiday.  As a result, staff 

proposes to cancel the January 2, 2020 regular city council meeting. 

 

Council member Vela moved to approve the cancellation of the January 2, 2020 regular city council 

meeting.  Seconded by Council member Thompson; motion carried on a vote of 6 Ayes.  

 

REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  

Items of Community Interest and review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 

Mr. Junru Roland announced items of community interest; and he reviewed the preliminary list for 

the January 16, 2020 City Council meeting. 

 

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council members, and 

City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken. 

 

Mrs. Roberts, City Secretary, reviewed items of community interest.   

 

Council member Thompson wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New and to stay safe 

when traveling.  

 

Council member Vela commended the city employees for their services to the city; he wished 

everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. He reminded citizens that fireworks are illegal 

in the city limits 

 

Council member Richards wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New.  He expressed his 

gratitude for representing the citizens of Alvin.  

 

Council member Castro wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a blessed New Year. He also spoke 

of optimism for the new year.  

 



MINUTES - 6 -                                    December 19, 2019 

 
Council member Adame reminded those in attendance of the Jr. Gordon Concert and Toy Drive on 

December 20th at Scopel Square. 

 

Council member Starkey expressed words of caution and reminders for a safe holiday season.  

 

Mayor Horn thanked Ari’Anna Cole for singing earlier in the meeting. He expressed pride in show 

casing the youth in our community.  
 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 8:19 p.m. 

 

 

PASSED and APPROVED the 16th day of   ________ 2020. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Paul A. Horn, Mayor 

 

           

ATTEST: ________________________ 

                     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

 

 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Engineering Contact:   Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Mustang Ridge Section 2 (located along the east side of Mustang 

Road and south of the Nelson Road intersection), being a Planned Unit Development 
subdivision containing 15.916 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company 
Survey, Abstract 225, in the City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On November 26, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Mustang Ridge 
Section 2 for review. The property is located along the east side of Mustang Road and south of the Nelson 
Road intersection. This section consists of sixty-eight (68) single-family lots, six (6) reserves, and four (4) 
blocks. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
The Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on December 17, 2019.  Staff 
recommends approval.   
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
 

• Click HERE to view Final Plat of Mustang Ridge Section 2. 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Mustang Ridge Section 2 (located along the east 

side of Mustang Road and south of the Nelson Road intersection), being a Planned 
Unit Development subdivision containing 15.916 acres of land located in the H.T. & 
B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 225, in the City of Alvin, Brazoria County, 
Texas. 

 
 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Final%20Plat%20Mustang%20Ridge%20Sec%20Sht%201%20of%202.pdf
http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Final%20Plat%20Mustang%20Ridge%20Sec%20Sht%201%20of%202.pdf


 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Engineering  Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Nickels 1462 Addition (located southeast of the intersection of 

FM 1462 and Skyranch Drive), a subdivision containing 1.816 acres, being a replat of lot 
4-A of the A.J. Owen Subdivision part of Myles O’Donnell Survey, Abstract No. 489, 
Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On November 26, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Nickels 1462 
Addition for review. The property is located in the City of Alvin southeast of the intersection of FM 1462 and 
Skyranch Drive. The plat consists of 1 lot and 1 block and is being platted for future commercial development. 
This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on December 17, 2019.  Staff 
recommends approval.  
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Click HERE to view Final Plat of Nickels 1462 Addition. 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Nickels 1462 Addition (located southeast of the 

intersection of FM 1462 and Skyranch Drive), a subdivision containing 1.816 acres, 
being a replat of lot 4-A of the A.J. Owen Subdivision part of Myles O’Donnell 
Survey, Abstract No. 489, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
  

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Final%20Plat%20Nickels%201462%20Addition.pdf
http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Final%20Plat%20Nickels%201462%20Addition.pdf


 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Engineering  Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Warehouse Business Park (2443 N. Gordon Street), being a 

subdivision of 29.0369 acres of land situated in the Hooper and Wade Survey, Section 21, 
Abstract No. 421, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On November 26, 2019, the Engineering Department received the final plat of Warehouse 
Business Park for review. The property is located at 2443 N. Gordon Street. The property is being platted in 
order to consolidate multiple tracts into one reserve for future commercial development by Southwest 
Refractory of Texas, LLC.  This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on December 17, 2019.  Staff 
recommends approval.  
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Click HERE to view Final Plat of Warehouse Business Park. 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Warehouse Business Park (2443 N. Gordon 

Street), being a subdivision of 29.0369 acres of land situated in the Hooper and 
Wade Survey, Section 21, Abstract No. 421, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
  

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Warehouse%20Business%20Park%20Final%20Plat.pdf
http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0158/docs/Plats/Warehouse%20Business%20Park%20Final%20Plat.pdf


 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Parks and Recreation Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a License Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property between the City of 

Alvin and the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation for the Music Festival and Bar-B-Q Cook-
off to be held at Briscoe Park from Friday March 27, 2020 thru Sunday, March 29, 2020; 
and authorize the City Manager to sign said agreement. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The Alvin Sunrise rotary Foundation has requested the City issue a license agreement for the 
purpose of holding a fundraising event, Music Fest and Bar-B-Q Cook-Off (March 27 - 29, 2020) in Briscoe 
Park to include food and alcoholic beverages, music and other entertainment. 
 
Alvin Sunrise Rotary shall: 
• Adhere to governmental regulations concerning the sale of food and alcohol and obtain appropriate permits 
• Adhere to City’s noise ordinance and obtain appropriate sound/noise permit 
• Fence the park area used exclusively for the event 
• Ensure the deployment of police for security and pay the cost of City of Alvin police officers to perform 

security and/or traffic control 
• Maintain the property in clean condition  
• Abide by all terms of the Community Wide Event Application, including insurance requirements 
 
The City Shall: 
• Contribute $20,000 of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds thru the H.O.T. fund grant program ($10,000 distribution 

payment made October 17, 2019) 
• Authorize Alvin Sunrise Foundation to sell alcoholic beverages on City property 
• Waive tent permit fees for individual participating cookers/cook teams 
• Waive park user fees as outlined in the Community Wide Event Application 
• Provide up to 15 hours of the Alvin Fire Marshal or Assistant Fire Marshal’s time for inspection of cookers 

and other Fire Safety and Prevention services required by the City 
• Provide barricades and cones for street closure 
• Provide APD forklift and portable freezer/refrigerator for event purposes at no cost 
• Provide EMS personnel and ambulance 
• Provide Mobile Command Truck 
• Provide portable restroom 
• Provide up to 20 picnic tables and 30 trash barrels with liners 
• Provide electricity and water, where already furnished 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 



 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• License Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property 
• Exhibit A - Map 
• License Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property - Redline 
• Community Wide Event Application 
• Res. 14-R-37 Donation Agreement 

 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve the License Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property between 
the City of Alvin and the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation for the Music fest and Bar-
B-Q Cook-off to be held at Briscoe Park from Friday, March 27, 2020 thru Sunday, 
March 29, 2020; and authorize the City Manager to sign said agreement. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

FOR EXCLUSIVE USE OF CITY PROPERTY  

 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into on this ___16____ day of 

___January___________, 2020, by and between the City of Alvin, a municipal corporation (“the 

City”), and Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation, a Domestic Non-Profit Corporation (“Licensee”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 

A. The Licensee hereby requests use of a city park for a fundraising event for the Alvin Sunrise 

Rotary Foundation and agrees to abide by all rules and procedures as set forth by the City. 

 

B. Licensee has requested the City to issue Licensee a license for the purpose of holding the Alvin 

Music Festival and Cook-Off in the city park known as Briscoe Park, located at 3625 Briscoe 

Drive, Alvin, Texas, for the purpose of providing music and other entertainment. Licensee will 

have exclusive use of the city park, charge admission to the public to enter the city park 

property, and sell beer, food, and other items. 

 

C. The City and Licensee entered into a donation agreement signed by Mayor Paul Horn with 

authorization from the City Council on December 18, 2015, which granted the Licensee 

naming rights to the pavilion located at Briscoe Park, and exclusive use of the park for one (1) 

week per year for seven (7) years, up to and including the year 2021. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, and subject to the terms and conditions below, the City hereby grants to 

Licensee the exclusive use of the city park described and defined below and, in consideration of 

the license granted to Licensee herein, Licensee agrees to the following: 

 

1. Licensed Property. The licensed property consists of that city park property highlighted on the 

map attached as Exhibit A, (the “Licensed Property”), known as Briscoe Park, located at 3625 

Briscoe Drive, Alvin, Texas. The Licensee accepts the property “as is” and the City makes no 

warranty or guarantee as to the suitability of said property for the purpose of a fundraising event 

involving the sale of beer and food and providing music and other entertainment. 

 

2. Purposes. Licensee may use the Licensed Property for the purposes stated herein and for no 

other purpose or use without the express written consent of the City.  

 

3. Term of License. This License shall begin Monday, March 23, 2020, at 6:00 a.m. and continue 

through Sunday, March 29, 2020, at 9:00 p.m. (a period of approximately seven (7) consecutive 

days), unless revoked earlier by the City at its sole discretion. 

 

4.  Operation Requirements. 

 

Licensee agrees to the following: 

 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 2 of 7 

 

a. Licensee shall adhere to all local, state and federal regulations concerning the sale and 

distribution of food and alcohol, including obtaining a food/beverage sales permit and 

alcoholic beverage distribution requirements and permit.   

 

b. Licensee shall obtain a sound and noise permit. The approval of said permit shall 

exempt the Licensee from the current maximum permissible sound levels outlined in 

Section 15-9.2 of the City of Alvin’s Code of Ordinances.  This exemption is clearly 

stated in Section 15-9.4 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 

c. Licensee shall fence the entire Licensed Property area to be used for Licensee’s 

exclusive use. 

 

d. Licensee qualified as a “Recognized Group” in the Community Wide Event 

Application and shall provide security personnel for the entire time Licensee sells or 

distributes alcoholic beverages on Friday, March 27, 2020, beginning at 4:00 p.m. 

through 12:00 a.m., Saturday, March 28, 2020, beginning at 10:00 a.m. through 12:00 

a.m., and again Sunday, March 29, 2020 beginning at 12:00 p.m. through 7:00 p.m. and 

in accordance with all local, state and federal regulations concerning the sale and 

distribution of alcoholic beverages. 

 

e. Licensee shall provide security personnel to perform any traffic control related to the 

event. 

 

f. Licensee acknowledges the required security personnel is defined in the “Recognized 

Group” document to consist of a ratio of one (1) currently certified Texas peace officer 

to every fifty (50) patrons in the alcohol area, with City of Alvin police personnel given 

first consideration for paid positions.  Licensee further acknowledges the Alvin Chief 

of Police reserves the right to establish, change or modify the amount and type of peace 

officers needed. 

 

g. Licensee shall pay the required City of Alvin police security and traffic control at 

Licensee’s expense.   

 

h. Licensee and its agents shall maintain the property in a reasonably clean condition, and, 

at the termination of the license, shall remove all equipment, refuse and any other 

materials brought onto the property by the Licensee and/or its guests. 

 

i. Licensee shall abide by all the terms of the Community Wide Event Application, 

Ordinances and/or Fees that are not excepted in this Agreement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 3 of 7 

 

 

City agrees to the following: 

 

a. Authorize Licensee (TABC permit holder) to sell alcoholic beverages on the Licensed 

Property during the term of the License in accordance with local, state and federal 

regulations concerning the sale and distribution of alcohol. 

 

b. Provide necessary barricades and cones for street closures at no cost to Licensee. 

 

c. Provide Alvin Police Department forklift and portable freezer/refrigerator for event 

purposes at no cost to Licensee. 

 

d. Provide onsite EMS personnel and ambulance at no cost to Licensee. 

 

e. Provide onsite Alvin Office of Emergency Management Mobile Command Truck at no 

cost to Licensee. 

 

f. Provide use of the portable restroom, up to 20 picnic tables and 30 trash barrels with 

liners at no cost to Licensee. 

 

g. Provide electricity and water, where already furnished, which includes electrical 

outlets, security lights, athletic field lighting as well as interior and exterior lighting on 

the concession stand and press box buildings at no cost to Licensee. 

 

h. Contribute Twenty Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($20,000) from the Hotel Occupancy 

Tax Fund to be used in accordance with the Hotel Occupancy Tax Funding Application 

submitted by the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation and approved by the HOT Tax 

Committee on September 4, 2019. 

 

i. Provide up to 15 hours of the Alvin Fire Marshall or Assistant Fire Marshall’s time for 

inspection of cookers and other Fire Safety and prevention services required by the City 

at no cost to Licensee. 

 

j. Waive tent permit fee for each participating cooker/cook team required by Section 28-

2, Code of Ordinances. 

 

5.  Qualifications of Licensee. Licensee shall be qualified to perform all activities described in 

the Recitals and shall perform all activities in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 

6.  Indemnification and Insurance. Licensee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, 

its officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns from any and all claims, losses, costs, 

damages, expenses and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys' fees, for or from loss of life or 

damage or injury to any person or property of any person or entity, including, without limitation, 

the agents, officers, employees, invitees and licensees of the City, arising out of, connected with 

or incidental to, either directly or indirectly, Licensee's negligent use of, construction on, or 

maintenance of the Licensed Property during the term of this License by Licensee, its employees, 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 4 of 7 

 

agents, contractors and subcontractors, licensees or invitees or the exercise by Licensee of any of 

its rights or the performance by Licensee of any of its obligations. Licensee shall not interfere with 

or damage existing utility facilities or City infrastructure, on, off, under, or near the Licensed 

Property, and shall indemnify and reimburse the City for any damages, costs, expenses or liabilities 

resulting from Licensee's damage or interference therewith. The indemnity obligation contained 

in this Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this License. In no event, 

however, shall the foregoing agreement to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City be 

deemed to extend to any liability for any environmental condition of the Licensed Property. 

 

Licensee shall, at its own expense, defend the City in all litigation, pay all reasonable attorneys' 

fees, reasonable damages, court costs and other reasonable expenses arising out of such litigation 

or claims incurred in connection therewith; and shall, at its own expense, satisfy and cause to be 

discharged such judgments as may be obtained against the City, or any of its officers, agents or 

employees, arising out of such litigation. 

 

Licensee shall not cause or permit any mechanic's or similar liens to be filed against City’s property 

arising from any work done by Licensee, and Licensee hereby agrees to and shall indemnify and 

defend and hold harmless City with respect to any such lien or claim (including any attorneys’ fees 

incurred by City in connection with any such lien or claim).  If any mechanic's lien or other lien 

shall be created or filed against City’s property by reason of labor performed by or materials 

furnished to Licensee, then Licensee shall, within ten (10) days thereafter, at Licensee’s sole cost 

and expense, cause such lien or liens, together with any notices of intention to file mechanic's liens 

that may have been filed with respect thereto, to be satisfied or discharged of record. 

 

Licensee shall take out and maintain at its own expense during the term of this License, 

Comprehensive General Liability insurance, wherein the City is named as an additional insured, 

as shall protect itself, the City, and any entity performing work covered by this License from claims 

for damage for personal injury, disease, illness or death, including accidental death, as well as from 

claims for property damages which may arise from operations under this License, whether such 

operations be by itself or by any entity or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of 

them. The Comprehensive General Liability insurance policy shall have limits of liability of not 

less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) applicable to the liability assumed by Licensee 

under this Section 5. Licensee shall provide the City Manager for the city of Alvin, Texas, with a 

copy of its Certificate of Insurance at the time of execution of this License.  

 

All insurance required hereunder shall be effected under valid and enforceable policies issued by 

insurers of recognized responsibility authorized to do business in the State of Texas, and shall 

contain a provision whereby the insurer agrees not to cancel the insurance without ten (10) days 

prior written notice to the City Manager, 216 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511. 

 

7.  Events of Default. Each of the following, without limitation, shall constitute an event of default 

by Licensee: 

 

a. Licensee fails to keep, perform and observe any promise or agreement contained in this 

License; or 

b. Any lien is filed against the Licensed Premises because of any act or omission of Licensee. 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 5 of 7 

 

 

7.1. Upon the occurrence of any of items (a) through (b) of Section 7, the City may, at its 

option, exercise any one or more of the following rights and remedies: 

 

a. deny access to the Licensed Property; or 

b. terminate this License Agreement; or 

c. exercise any and all additional rights and remedies that the City may have at law or 

in equity. 

 

7.2. No waiver by the City at any time of any of the terms or conditions of this License 

Agreement shall be deemed or taken as a waiver at any time thereafter of the same or 

any other terms or condition herein or of the strict and prompt performance thereof.  

 

No delay, failure or omission of the City to take or to exercise any right, power, 

privilege or option arising from any default, or subsequent acceptance of any fee then 

or thereafter accrued shall impair or be construed to impair any such right, power, 

privilege or option to waive any such default or relinquish thereof, or acquiescence 

therein and no notice by the City shall be required to restore or revive any option, right, 

power, remedy or privilege after waiver by the City of default in one or more instances. 

 

No waiver shall be valid against the City unless reduced to writing and signed by an 

officer of the City duly empowered to execute same. 

 

7.3. Except as otherwise provided herein, neither the City nor Licensee shall be deemed to 

be in default or breach of this License Agreement by reason of failure to perform any 

one or more of its obligations hereunder if, while and to the extent that such failure is 

due to acts of God, acts of government authority, or any other circumstances for which 

it is not responsible and which are not within its control; provided that Licensee's 

obligation to pay fees, additional fees, charges or other money payments required by 

this License Agreement which have been incurred prior to the force majeure event or 

following its cessation shall continue. 

 

8.  Compliance with Laws. Licensee shall comply with local, state, and federal laws, regulations, 

ordinances and orders governing the Licensed Property and the activities authorized hereunder, 

and shall obtain all necessary permits from the City prior to commencement of the activities 

authorized hereunder. 

 

9.  Safety Measures. Licensee shall fence, barricade or take such other measures as are necessary 

or appropriate to protect the general public from any danger posed by Licensee's activities or 

Licensee’s property under this License. Licensee shall also take measures to protect existing City 

infrastructure on the property, including but not limited to sidewalks, water and sewer lines, water 

meters and other utilities. 

 

10.  Taxes and Other Charges. Licensee agrees to timely pay all taxes, if applicable, and any 

other charges or expenses attributable to Licensee's activities. 

 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 6 of 7 

 

11.  Surrender of Premises and Title to Improvements. Licensee shall release to the City 

possession of the Licensed Property on the time prescribed of this License, whether such cessation 

be by revocation, termination, expiration or otherwise, promptly and in good condition.  

 

Prior to such surrender of the Licensed Property, Licensee shall restore and repair any and all 

damage to the Licensed Property caused by, related to or resulting from Licensee's operations 

thereon, normal wear and tear excepted.  

 

12.  Entire Agreement. This License constitutes the entire agreement between the parties as of 

the date hereof. Any provisions of prior licenses, agreements or documents which conflict in any 

manner with the provisions of this License are hereby specifically declared void and of no effect.  

Except as otherwise specifically provided, any change in the terms of this Agreement shall be 

made by an amendment in writing and signed by both parties. 

 

13.  City’s Right of Entry. The City of Alvin, its officers and employees, shall be entitled to enter 

the Licensed Property at any time for all reasonable purposes, including, without limitation, 

inspection of the Licensee's activities hereunder. 

 

14.  Right to Assign or Sublet. This License may not be assigned to any person or group, nor 

sublet in any part for any purpose without written consent from the City. 

 

16.  Notices. Notices shall be in writing and directed to the parties at the addresses below.  Delivery 

shall be by hand delivery, facsimile, messenger, overnight courier, or via first class U.S. mail.  

 

To the City of Alvin: 

City Manager 

216 W. Sealy 

Alvin, TX 77511 

 

To the Licensee: 

 

Name:    Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation 

Address:   P.O. Box 42 

Alvin, Texas 77512 

 

Contact Person: Robert Vasquez 

Phone:   832-347-4106 

 

 

  



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 7 of 7 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this License to be executed as 

of the date first set forth above. 

 

CITY OF ALVIN 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

Junru Roland, City Manager 

 

Date: ________________________________ 

 

 

 

The undersigned hereby agrees and consents to the terms and conditions of this License, and 

further states that she/he has authority to sign on behalf of the Licensee. 

 

 

Signature:  _______________________________ 

Title:   Vice President, Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation 

Print Name: Robert Vasquez 

Date:  ________________________________ 

 

 

Attachment: Exhibit A [map] 

 



2020 Alvin Sunrise Rotary Music Festival 

Legend 

    Light tower 

    Road closure 

         Perimeter Fence 

  Life flight LZ Primary #1 

   Life flight LZ Secondary #2 

 Designated Disabled Parking Area 

 Traffic cones 



 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

FOR EXCLUSIVE USE OF CITY PROPERTY  

 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into on this _______ day of 

___________________, 2020, by and between the City of Alvin, a municipal corporation (“the 

City”), and Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation, a Domestic Non-Profit Corporation (“Licensee”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 

A. The Licensee hereby requests use of a city park for a fundraising event for the Alvin Sunrise 

Rotary Foundation and agrees to abide by all rules and procedures as set forth by the City. 

 

B. Licensee has requested the City to issue Licensee a license for the purpose of holding the Alvin 

Music Festival and Cook-Off in the city park known as Briscoe Park, located at 3625 Briscoe 

Drive, Alvin, Texas, for the purpose of providing music and other entertainment. Licensee will 

have exclusive use of the city park, charge admission to the public to enter the city park 

property, and sell beer, food, and other items. 

 

C. The City and Licensee entered into a donation agreement signed by Mayor Paul Horn with 

authorization from the City Council on December 18, 2015, which granted the Licensee 

naming rights to the pavilion located at Briscoe Park, and exclusive use of the park for one (1) 

week per year for seven (7) years, up to and including the year 2021. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, and subject to the terms and conditions below, the City hereby grants to 

Licensee the exclusive use of the city park described and defined below and, in consideration of 

the license granted to Licensee herein, Licensee agrees to the following: 

 

1. Licensed Property. The licensed property consists of that city park property highlighted on the 

map attached as Exhibit A, (the “Licensed Property”), known as Briscoe Park, located at 3625 

Briscoe Drive, Alvin, Texas. The Licensee accepts the property “as is” and the City makes no 

warranty or guarantee as to the suitability of said property for the purpose of a fundraising event 

involving the sale of beer and food and providing music and other entertainment. 

 

2. Purposes. Licensee may use the Licensed Property for the purposes stated herein and for no 

other purpose or use without the express written consent of the City.  

 

3. Term of License. This License shall begin Monday, March 23, 2020, at 6:00 a.m. and continue 

through Sunday, March 29, 2020, at 59:00 p.m. (a period of approximately seven (7) consecutive 

days), unless revoked earlier by the City at its sole discretion. 

 

4.  Operation Requirements. 

 

Licensee agrees to the following: 

 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 2 of 7 

 

a. Licensee shall adhere to all local, state and federal regulations concerning the sale and 

distribution of food and alcohol, including obtaining a food/beverage sales permit and 

alcoholic beverage distribution requirements and permit.   

 

b. Licensee shall obtain a sound and noise permit. The approval of said permit shall 

exempt the Licensee from the current maximum permissible sound levels outlined in 

Section 15-9.2 of the City of Alvin’s Code of Ordinances.  This exemption is clearly 

stated in Section 15-9.4 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 

c. Licensee shall fence the entire Licensed Property area to be used for Licensee’s 

exclusive use. 

 

d. Licensee qualified as a “Recognized Group” in the Community Wide Event 

Application and shall provide security personnel for the entire time Licensee sells or 

distributes alcoholic beverages on Friday, March 27, 2020, beginning at 4:00 p.m. 

through 12:00 a.m., and again Saturday, March 28, 2020, beginning at 10:00 a.m. 

through 12:00 a.m., and again Sunday, March 29, 2020 beginning at 12:00 p.m. through 

7:00 p.m. and in accordance with all local, state and federal regulations concerning the 

sale and distribution of alcoholic beverages. 

 

e. Licensee shall provide security personnel to perform any traffic control related to the 

event. 

 

f. Licensee acknowledges the required security personnel is defined in the “Recognized 

Group” document to consist of a ratio of one (1) currently certified Texas peace officer 

to every fifty (50) patrons in the alcohol area, with City of Alvin police personnel given 

first consideration for paid positions.  Licensee further acknowledges the Alvin Chief 

of Police reserves the right to establish, change or modify the amount and type of peace 

officers needed. 

 

g. Licensee shall pay the required City of Alvin police security and traffic control at 

Licensee’s expense.   

 

h. Licensee and its agents shall maintain the property in a reasonably clean condition, and, 

at the termination of the license, shall remove all equipment, refuse and any other 

materials brought onto the property by the Licensee and/or its guests. 

 

i. Licensee shall abide by all the terms of the Community Wide Event Application, 

Ordinances and/or Fees that are not excepted in this Agreement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 3 of 7 

 

 

City agrees to the following: 

 

a. Authorize Licensee (TABC permit holder) to sell alcoholic beverages on the Licensed 

Property during the term of the License in accordance with local, state and federal 

regulations concerning the sale and distribution of alcohol. 

 

b. Provide necessary barricades and cones for street closures at no cost to Licensee. 

 

c. Provide Alvin Police Department forklift and portable freezer/refrigerator for event 

purposes at no cost to Licensee. 

 

d. Provide onsite EMS personnel and ambulance at no cost to Licensee. 

 

e. Provide onsite Alvin Office of Emergency Management Mobile Command Truck at no 

cost to Licensee. 

 

f. Provide use of the portable restroom, up to 20 picnic tables and 30 trash barrels with 

liners at no cost to Licensee. 

 

g. Provide electricity and water, where already furnished, which includes electrical 

outlets, security lights, athletic field lighting as well as interior and exterior lighting on 

the concession stand and press box buildings at no cost to Licensee. 

 

h. Contribute Twenty Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($18,000) ($20,000) from the Hotel 

Occupancy Tax Fund to be used in accordance with the Hotel Occupancy Tax Funding 

Application submitted by the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation and approved by the 

HOT Tax Committee on September 4, 2019. 

 

i. Provide up to 15 hours of the Alvin Fire Marshall or Assistant Fire Marshall’s time for 

inspection of cookers and other Fire Safety and prevention services required by the City 

at no cost to Licensee. 

 

j. Waive tent permit fee for each participating cooker/cook team required by Section 28-

2, Code of Ordinances. 

 

5.  Qualifications of Licensee. Licensee shall be qualified to perform all activities described in 

the Recitals and shall perform all activities in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 

6.  Indemnification and Insurance. Licensee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, 

its officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns from any and all claims, losses, costs, 

damages, expenses and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys' fees, for or from loss of life or 

damage or injury to any person or property of any person or entity, including, without limitation, 

the agents, officers, employees, invitees and licensees of the City, arising out of, connected with 

or incidental to, either directly or indirectly, Licensee's negligent use of, construction on, or 

maintenance of the Licensed Property during the term of this License by Licensee, its employees, 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 4 of 7 

 

agents, contractors and subcontractors, licensees or invitees or the exercise by Licensee of any of 

its rights or the performance by Licensee of any of its obligations. Licensee shall not interfere with 

or damage existing utility facilities or City infrastructure, on, off, under, or near the Licensed 

Property, and shall indemnify and reimburse the City for any damages, costs, expenses or liabilities 

resulting from Licensee's damage or interference therewith. The indemnity obligation contained 

in this Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this License. In no event, 

however, shall the foregoing agreement to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City be 

deemed to extend to any liability for any environmental condition of the Licensed Property. 

 

Licensee shall, at its own expense, defend the City in all litigation, pay all reasonable attorneys' 

fees, reasonable damages, court costs and other reasonable expenses arising out of such litigation 

or claims incurred in connection therewith; and shall, at its own expense, satisfy and cause to be 

discharged such judgments as may be obtained against the City, or any of its officers, agents or 

employees, arising out of such litigation. 

 

Licensee shall not cause or permit any mechanic's or similar liens to be filed against City’s property 

arising from any work done by Licensee, and Licensee hereby agrees to and shall indemnify and 

defend and hold harmless City with respect to any such lien or claim (including any attorneys’ fees 

incurred by City in connection with any such lien or claim).  If any mechanic's lien or other lien 

shall be created or filed against City’s property by reason of labor performed by or materials 

furnished to Licensee, then Licensee shall, within ten (10) days thereafter, at Licensee’s sole cost 

and expense, cause such lien or liens, together with any notices of intention to file mechanic's liens 

that may have been filed with respect thereto, to be satisfied or discharged of record. 

 

Licensee shall take out and maintain at its own expense during the term of this License, 

Comprehensive General Liability insurance, wherein the City is named as an additional insured, 

as shall protect itself, the City, and any entity performing work covered by this License from claims 

for damage for personal injury, disease, illness or death, including accidental death, as well as from 

claims for property damages which may arise from operations under this License, whether such 

operations be by itself or by any entity or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of 

them. The Comprehensive General Liability insurance policy shall have limits of liability of not 

less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) applicable to the liability assumed by Licensee 

under this Section 5. Licensee shall provide the City Manager for the city of Alvin, Texas, with a 

copy of its Certificate of Insurance at the time of execution of this License.  

 

All insurance required hereunder shall be effected under valid and enforceable policies issued by 

insurers of recognized responsibility authorized to do business in the State of Texas, and shall 

contain a provision whereby the insurer agrees not to cancel the insurance without ten (10) days 

prior written notice to the City Manager, 216 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511. 

 

7.  Events of Default. Each of the following, without limitation, shall constitute an event of default 

by Licensee: 

 

a. Licensee fails to keep, perform and observe any promise or agreement contained in this 

License; or 

b. Any lien is filed against the Licensed Premises because of any act or omission of Licensee. 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 5 of 7 

 

 

7.1. Upon the occurrence of any of items (a) through (b) of Section 7, the City may, at its 

option, exercise any one or more of the following rights and remedies: 

 

a. deny access to the Licensed Property; or 

b. terminate this License Agreement; or 

c. exercise any and all additional rights and remedies that the City may have at law or 

in equity. 

 

7.2. No waiver by the City at any time of any of the terms or conditions of this License 

Agreement shall be deemed or taken as a waiver at any time thereafter of the same or 

any other terms or condition herein or of the strict and prompt performance thereof.  

 

No delay, failure or omission of the City to take or to exercise any right, power, 

privilege or option arising from any default, or subsequent acceptance of any fee then 

or thereafter accrued shall impair or be construed to impair any such right, power, 

privilege or option to waive any such default or relinquish thereof, or acquiescence 

therein and no notice by the City shall be required to restore or revive any option, right, 

power, remedy or privilege after waiver by the City of default in one or more instances. 

 

No waiver shall be valid against the City unless reduced to writing and signed by an 

officer of the City duly empowered to execute same. 

 

7.3. Except as otherwise provided herein, neither the City nor Licensee shall be deemed to 

be in default or breach of this License Agreement by reason of failure to perform any 

one or more of its obligations hereunder if, while and to the extent that such failure is 

due to acts of God, acts of government authority, or any other circumstances for which 

it is not responsible and which are not within its control; provided that Licensee's 

obligation to pay fees, additional fees, charges or other money payments required by 

this License Agreement which have been incurred prior to the force majeure event or 

following its cessation shall continue. 

 

8.  Compliance with Laws. Licensee shall comply with local, state, and federal laws, regulations, 

ordinances and orders governing the Licensed Property and the activities authorized hereunder, 

and shall obtain all necessary permits from the City prior to commencement of the activities 

authorized hereunder. 

 

9.  Safety Measures. Licensee shall fence, barricade or take such other measures as are necessary 

or appropriate to protect the general public from any danger posed by Licensee's activities or 

Licensee’s property under this License. Licensee shall also take measures to protect existing City 

infrastructure on the property, including but not limited to sidewalks, water and sewer lines, water 

meters and other utilities. 

 

10.  Taxes and Other Charges. Licensee agrees to timely pay all taxes, if applicable, and any 

other charges or expenses attributable to Licensee's activities. 

 



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 6 of 7 

 

11.  Surrender of Premises and Title to Improvements. Licensee shall release to the City 

possession of the Licensed Property on the time prescribed of this License, whether such cessation 

be by revocation, termination, expiration or otherwise, promptly and in good condition.  

 

Prior to such surrender of the Licensed Property, Licensee shall restore and repair any and all 

damage to the Licensed Property caused by, related to or resulting from Licensee's operations 

thereon, normal wear and tear excepted.  

 

12.  Entire Agreement. This License constitutes the entire agreement between the parties as of 

the date hereof. Any provisions of prior licenses, agreements or documents which conflict in any 

manner with the provisions of this License are hereby specifically declared void and of no effect.  

Except as otherwise specifically provided, any change in the terms of this Agreement shall be 

made by an amendment in writing and signed by both parties. 

 

13.  City’s Right of Entry. The City of Alvin, its officers and employees, shall be entitled to enter 

the Licensed Property at any time for all reasonable purposes, including, without limitation, 

inspection of the Licensee's activities hereunder. 

 

14.  Right to Assign or Sublet. This License may not be assigned to any person or group, nor 

sublet in any part for any purpose without written consent from the City. 

 

16.  Notices. Notices shall be in writing and directed to the parties at the addresses below.  Delivery 

shall be by hand delivery, facsimile, messenger, overnight courier, or via first class U.S. mail.  

 

To the City of Alvin: 

City Manager 

216 W. Sealy 

Alvin, TX 77511 

 

To the Licensee: 

 

Name:    Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation 

Address:   P.O. Box 42 

Alvin, Texas 77512 

 

Contact Person: Robert Vasquez 

Phone:   832-347-4106 

 

 

  



Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation License  
Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property  Page 7 of 7 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this License to be executed as 

of the date first set forth above. 

 

CITY OF ALVIN 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

Junru Roland, City Manager 

 

Date: ________________________________ 

 

 

 

The undersigned hereby agrees and consents to the terms and conditions of this License, and 

further states that she/he has authority to sign on behalf of the Licensee. 

 

 

Signature:  _______________________________ 

Title:   Vice President, Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation 

Print Name: Robert Vasquez 

Date:  ________________________________ 

 

 

Attachment: Exhibit A [map] 

 















RESOLUTION NO. 14-R-37

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 

TEXAS APPROVING A DONATION AGREEMENT WITH THE ALVIN
SUNRISE ROTARY; WHEREIN THE ALVIN SUNRISE ROTARY WILL

DONATE A TOTAL VALUE OF APPROXIMATELY $ 51, 000 TO THE
CITY PARKS DEPARTMENT AND COUNCIL AUTHORIZES

EXCLUSIVE USAGE RIGHTS TO BRISCOE PARK BY ALVIN SUNRISE

ROTARY FOR ONE WEEK EACH YEAR FOR 7 YEARS FOR THE
ALVIN MUSIC FESTIVAL & BBQ COOK -OFF AND COUNCIL
FURTHER AUTHORIZES NAMING THE PAVILION LOCATED AT

BRISCOE PARK AS THE " ALVIN SUNRISE ROTARY PAVILION" FOR

20 YEARS. 

WHEREAS, Alvin prides itself on community involvement with local organizations, and has
such a relationship with the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club; and

WHEREAS, the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club (" Rotary") contacted the City of Alvin and is
requesting the City consider a Donation Agreement that provides for a total contribution of

51, 000 of equipment and/ or cash donations over the course of seven (7) years for improvements

to City parks in exchange for naming rights to the pavilion at Briscoe Park and exclusive usage
of Briscoe Park for certain Rotary events as described more fully in the Donation Agreement
attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

WHEREAS, the donations to purchase equipment and/or cash donations will help the City
provide additional seating areas and equipment for use by the Parks Department in City parks
improving the quality and enjoyment of City parks; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council, on behalf of the City of Alvin, desire to approve the
Donation Agreement and accept the donations and express their sincere appreciation to the Alvin

Sunrise Rotary Club for their generous contribution and commitment to improve the Parks of the
City of Alvin, NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby adopts the recitals and findings set forth in the
preamble hereof. 

Section 2. That the City Council approves the Donation Agreement attached hereto as
Exhibit "A", and authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement. 

Section 3. That the City Council, on behalf of the citizens of the City of Alvin, hereby
expresses its appreciation to the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club, and accepts the generous donations
that will total approximately $ 51, 000 at the end of seven ( 7) years, to provide much needed
money and equipment to furnish the new City of Alvin Parks facilities. 

Res 14R-37 Page 1 of 2



Section 4. That the City Council directs staff to deposit any donated funds received from the
Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club into the donation fund for use in accordance with this resolution and
consistent with the spirit of the donation. 

Section 5. Open Meeting Act. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting
at which this resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of

the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov' t Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the  day of s'P mLy- 2014. 

ATTEST:

ee] 

By: 1D& 

11
Dixie Roberts, City Clerk

CITY OF ALVIN TEXAS

B:/. Y
Paul A. Horn, Mayor

Res 14-R•37 Page 2 of 2



DONATION AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

ALVIN SUNRISE ROTARY CLUB AND

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS

9,91
Lis

VS-9

liThis Donation Agreement ( the " Agreement") is made this II day of C,  iytr

Effective Date") by and among the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club    ( hereinafter referred to as

the" Donor"), and the City ofAlvin   (hereinafter referred to as the" City").

Donor and the City agree as follows:

1.       Donor Commitment.   Donor pledges a total donation value of Fifty-One Thousand

Dollars($ 51, 000) to the City over nine years for the benefit of the City Parks.

The City acknowledges and recognizes that Donor previously donated a total of$10,000 for the
benefit of City Parks for rehabilitation of twelve ( 12) picnic tables in 2013 and eighteen ( 18)
picnic tables in 2014.

Donor hereby pledges that in Year 1 ( 2015), Donor will make cash donations totaling Eleven
Thousand Dollars ($ 11, 000) for the purchase and installation of wobble spheres ($ 3, 500) and the

purchase of a field sander($ 6,500), and an additional $ 1, 000 donation for general Park use. It is

also understood and agreed that in Years 2-7( 2016-2021), Donor will submit additional donation

funds and/or equipment in the amount of Five Thousand Dollars($ 5, 000) per year totaling Thirty
Thousand Dollars($ 30,000).

2.       Payment Schedule.   It is understood and agreed that Donor shall submit the Year 1

donation(s) totaling Eleven Thousand Dollars ($ 11, 000) in full on or before August 1, 2015.

It is further understood and agreed that Donor shall submit Years 2- 7 annual$ 5,000 donations on
or before January

315t, 

beginning 2016, and continuing each year for five (5) additional years
with a final payment to be made on or before January 31, 2021.*

The City may invest the donated funds as it shall best determine, pending distribution of same,
for the use and purpose by the City ofAlvin Parks Department.

3.       Naming Rights/Approvals:  For the donations listed above, and upon mutual acceptance

to Donor and the City and approval by Resolution by the City Council, the pavilion located at
Briscoe Park shall be named" Alvin Sunrise Rotary Pavilion". Any and all signage designed for
the Briscoe Park Pavilion shall be paid by and at the sole cost of Donor. Additionally, all signage
design and location shall be approved by the City ofAlvin Parks Director prior to installation.

It is further agreed that in Year 1 ( 2015) and during Years 2- 7 ( 2016-2021), Donor will have

exclusive usage rights for one ( 1) week during the year to the entire;property of Briscoe Park



designated by the current approximate 42 acres) for the Alvin Music Festival and BBQ cook - 
off. The date of exclusive usage by Donor shall be approved by the City of Alvin Parks Director
and shall not interfere with any City parks' use obligations. Such exclusive use is subject to and
contingent upon Donor' s timely submission of the annual donations to the City. 

This Agreement pertaining to the naming rights of the pavilion as " Alvin Sunshine Rotary
Pavilion" shall remain in effect for a period of twenty (20) years, ending January 1, 2034, and is
subject to and contingent upon Rotary' s submission of full and final donation payments by
January 31, 2021. After January 1, 2034, Donor and the City may agree to additional terms for
any future naming rights as to be determined by Donor and City Council. 

4. Intent. It is the agreement of the parties and the intention and wish of Donor that this

donation and any unpaid promised installment under this Agreement shall constitute Donor' s
binding obligation and shall be enforceable at law and equity including, without limitation, 
against Donor and Donor' s personal representatives, and their successors and assigns. Donor

acknowledges that the City is relying, and shall continue to rely, on Donor' s gift being fully
satisfied as set forth herein. 

5. Additional Donations. Donor reserves the right to increase additional gifts and hereby

consents to additional contributions to the City subject to the provisions of this Agreement. 

6. Future Changed Circumstances. If, in the opinion of the City of Alvin, Texas, all or
part of this donation cannot at some time in the future be usefully or practically applied to the

above purposes, or if the purpose cannot be achieved because of a future change in law or

unforeseeable circumstances, it may be used for any related purpose which in the opinion of the

City ofAlvin will most nearly accomplish Donor' s wishes. 

14. Amendment. By mutual consent of the City and Donor, Donor' s legally or duly
appointed agent or attorney-in-fact, or the personal representative of Donor, any provision of this
Agreement may be amended, modified, or deleted. Any such changes, deletions or additions
shall be recorded in written signed addenda, which shall form part of this Agreement. 

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties with

respect to the subject matter of the Agreement and is subject to the laws of the State of Texas. 

This Agreement also supersedes all other agreements and understandings, both oral and written, 

between the parties relating to the subject matter of the Agreement. 

In witness whereof, the parties to this Agreement have affixed their signatures: 

EXECUTED to be effective as of the Effective Date as stated above. 

Donatton Agmt — Naming Rights to Briscoe Park Pavilion Page 2 of 3



ATTEST: 

Dixie Roberts, City Secretary

ALVIN SUNRISE ROTARY CLUB

Michael Hoover

Title: President

Robert Vasquez

Title: Past President

CITY OF AL, 

Paul A. Horn, Mayor

Donation Agmt— Naming Rights to Briscoe Park Pavilion Page 3 of 3



 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Parks and Recreation Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 20-R-01, finding that the Frontier Day event serves a public purpose 

for the City of Alvin and approving a multi-year agreement with the Texas Department of 
Transportation for the temporary closure of a portion of Business 35 (Gordon Street) for 
the parade; authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement; and setting forth other provisions 
related thereto. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   In order to facilitate the Frontier Day parade being located on a portion of Gordon Street / Business 
35, the Texas Department of Transportation requires that the City of Alvin submit an agreement for the temporary 
closure of the state right of way.  This agreement is a multi-year agreement (no to exceed 5 years).  This resolution 
authorizes the agreement with TXDOT to temporarily close a portion of Gordon Street for the specific purpose 
of a parade. 
 
Each year, prior to the event, the City will send TXDOT a letter of intent outlining the event with the certificate 
of insurance but no additional TXDOT approval is required for the term of this agreement. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 20-R-01. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☐    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Res. 20-R-01 
• TXDOT Multi-Year Agreement 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 20-R-01, finding that the Frontier Day event serves a 
public purpose for the City of Alvin and approving a multi-year agreement with the 
Texas Department of Transportation for the temporary closure of a portion of 
Business 35 (Gordon Street) for the parade; authorizing the Mayor to sign the 
agreement; and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 



 



Res 20-R-01 

RESOLUTION 20-R-01 
 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS FINDING THAT THE “FRONTIER DAY” EVENT SERVES A 
PUBLIC PURPOSE FOR THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS; AND 
APPROVING A MULTI-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH THE TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE TEMPORARY 
CLOSURE OF A PORTION OF BUSINESS 35 (GORDON STREET) FOR 
THE PARADE; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE 
AGREEMENT; AND SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS 
RELATED THERETO.  

 
 
WHEREAS, City of Alvin requests the temporary closure of a portion of Business 35 

(Gordon Street), located within the City of Alvin incorporated area; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Alvin finds that the “Frontier Day” event 
serves a public purpose, and in cooperation with the State of Texas ensures that the temporary 
closure of the State’s right of way will be performed within the State’s requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes the City of Alvin to enter into the Multi-Year 
Agreement for the Temporary Closure of State Right of Way with the Texas Department of 
Transportation; NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:  
 
Section 1. That the Multi-Year Agreement for the Temporary Closure of State Right of 
Way, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and made a part hereof, between the State of Texas and the 
City of Alvin, Texas, for the temporary closure of a portion of Business 35 (Gordon Street) for 
the Frontier Day parade, is hereby approved, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute 
said contract on behalf of the City of Alvin and to transmit the same to the State of Texas 
for appropriate action. 
 
Section 2. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the    16th     day of    January       , 2020.  
  
 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   ATTEST 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  



   Agreement No. _____________________ 
   District # ___________________ 
   Code Chart 64 #______________  
  Project:  ____________________ 
 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 1 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 
 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE 
OF STATE RIGHT OF WAY – MULTI-YEAR AGREEMENT 

FOR FRONTIER DAY 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the 
Texas Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the “State,” and the City of Alvin 
Texas, a municipal corporation, acting by and through its duly authorized officers, hereinafter 
called the “local government.” 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, the State owns and operates a system of highways for public use and benefit, 
including Highway 35 and Gordon Street, in Alvin, Brazoria County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the local government has requested the temporary closure of a portion of SH 35 
(Gordon Street) for the purpose of the Frontier Day Parade, as described in the attached 
“Exhibit A,” hereinafter identified as the “Event;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the Event will be located within the local government’s incorporated area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State, in recognition of the public purpose of the Event, wishes to cooperate 
with the City so long as the safety and convenience of the traveling public is ensured and that 
the closure of the State’s right of way will be performed within the State’s requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the   16th    day of   January   , 20 20, the  Alvin City Council passed 
Resolution No. 20-R-01, attached hereto and identified as “Exhibit B,” establishing that the 
Event serves a public purpose and authorizing the local government to enter into this 
agreement with the State; and 
 
WHEREAS, 43 TAC, Section 22.12 establishes the rules and procedures for the temporary 
closure of a segment of the State highway system; and 
 
WHEREAS, this agreement has been developed in accordance with the rules and 
procedures of 43 TAC, Section 22.12; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties hereto, to be by them respectively kept and performed as 
hereinafter set forth, it is agreed as follows: 
 

 
 
 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 
   District # ___________________ 
   Code Chart 64 #______________  
  Project:  ____________________ 
 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 2 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

A G R E E M E N T 
 
Article 1. CONTRACT PERIOD 
This agreement becomes effective upon final execution by the State and the maximum 
duration of this agreement shall not exceed five years unless terminated or modified as 
hereinafter provided.   
 
Article 2. EVENT DESCRIPTION 
Give a physical description of the annual event and when it will be held, the limits of the 
Event, including county names and highway numbers, the number of lanes the highway has 
and the number of lanes to be used, the proposed schedule of start and stop times and dates 
at each location, a brief description of the proposed activities involved, approximate number 
of people attending the Event, number and type of animals and equipment, planned physical 
modifications of any man-made or natural features in or adjacent to the right of way involved 
shall be attached hereto along with a location map and identified as “Exhibit C.” 
 
Article 3. OPERATIONS OF THE EVENT 
A. The local government shall assume all costs for the operations associated with the Event, 
to include but not limited to, plan development, materials, labor, public notification, providing 
protective barriers and barricades, protection of highway traffic and highway facilities, and all 
traffic control and temporary signing.  
 
B. The local government shall submit to the State for review and approval the construction 
plans, if construction or modifications to the State’s right of way is required, the traffic control 
and signing plans, traffic enforcement plans, and all other plans deemed necessary by the 
State.  The State may require that any traffic control plans of sufficient complexity be signed, 
sealed and dated by a registered professional engineer.  The traffic control plan shall be in 
accordance with the latest edition of the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  
All temporary traffic control devices used on state highway right of way must be included in 
the State’s Compliant Work Zone Traffic Control Devices List.  The State reserves the right to 
inspect the implementation of the traffic control plan and if it is found to be inadequate, the 
local government will bring the traffic control into compliance with the originally submitted 
plan, upon written notice from the State noting the required changes, prior to the event.  The 
State may request changes to the traffic control plan in order to ensure public safety due to 
changing or unforeseen circumstances regarding the closure.  
 
C. The local government will ensure that the appropriate law enforcement agency has 
reviewed the traffic control for the closures and that the agency has deemed them to be 
adequate.  If the law enforcement agency is unsure as to the adequacy of the traffic control, it 
will contact the State for consultation no less than 10 workdays prior to the closure. 
 
D. The local government will complete all revisions to the traffic control plan as requested by 
the State within the required timeframe or that the agreement will be terminated upon written 
notice from the State to the local government.  The local government hereby agrees that any 
failure to cooperate with the State may constitute reckless endangerment of the public and 
that the Texas Department of Public Safety may be notified of the situation as soon as 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 
   District # ___________________ 
   Code Chart 64 #______________  
  Project:  ____________________ 
 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 3 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

possible for the appropriate action, and failing to follow the traffic control plan or State 
instructions may result in a denial of future use of the right of way for three years. 
 
E. The local government will not initiate closure prior to 24 hours before the scheduled Event 
and all barriers and barricades will be removed and the highway reopened to traffic within 24 
hours after the completion of the Event. 
 
F. The local government will provide adequate enforcement personnel to prevent vehicles 
from stopping and parking along the main lanes of highway right of way and otherwise 
prevent interference with the main lane traffic by both vehicles and pedestrians.  The local 
government will prepare a traffic enforcement plan, to be approved by the State in writing at 
least 48 hours prior to the scheduled Event.  Additionally, the local government shall provide 
to the State a letter of certification from the law enforcement agency that will be providing 
traffic control for the Event, certifying that they agree with the enforcement plan and will be 
able to meet its requirements. 
 
G. The local government hereby assures the State that there will be appropriate passage 
allowance for emergency vehicle travel and adequate access for abutting property owners 
during construction and closure of the highway facility.  These allowances and accesses will 
be included in the local government’s traffic control plan. 
 
H. The local government will avoid or minimize damage, and will, at its own expense, restore 
or repair damage occurring outside the State’s right of way and restore or repair the State’s 
right of way, including, but not limited to, roadway and drainage structures, signs, overhead 
signs, pavement markings, traffic signals, power poles and pavement, etc. to a condition 
equal to that existing before the closure, and, to the extent practicable, restore the natural 
and cultural environment in accordance with federal and state law, including landscape and 
historical features. 
 
Article 4. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
Upon completion or termination of this agreement, all documents prepared by the local 
government will remain the property of the local government.  All data prepared under this 
agreement shall be made available to the State without restriction or limitation on their further 
use. At the request of the State, the Local Government shall submit any information required 
by the State in the format directed by the State. 
 
Article 5. TERMINATION 
A. This agreement may be terminated by any of the following conditions: 
 (1) By mutual written agreement and consent of both parties. 
 (2) By the State upon determination that use of the State’s right of way is not  
  feasible or is not in the best interest of the State and the traveling public. 
 (3) By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill the obligations as set  
  forth herein. 
 (4) By satisfactory completion of all services and obligations as set forth herein. 
 
 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 
   District # ___________________ 
   Code Chart 64 #______________  
  Project:  ____________________ 
 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 4 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

B. The termination of this agreement shall extinguish all rights, duties, obligations, and 
liabilities of the State and local government under this agreement.  If the potential termination 
of this agreement is due to the failure of the local government to fulfill its contractual 
obligations as set forth herein, the State will notify the local government that possible breach 
of contract has occurred.  The local government must remedy the breach as outlined by the 
State within ten (10) days from receipt of the State’s notification.  In the event the local 
government does not remedy the breach to the satisfaction of the State, the local government 
shall be liable to the State for the costs of remedying the breach and any additional costs 
occasioned by the State. 
 
Article 6. DISPUTES 
Should disputes arise as to the parties’ responsibilities or additional work under this 
agreement, the State’s decision shall be final and binding. 
 
Article 7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or 
employee of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and 
agents. 
 
Article 8. INSURANCE 
A. Prior to beginning any work upon the State’s right of way, the local government and/or its 
contractors shall furnish to the State a completed “Certificate of Insurance” (TxDOT Form 
1560, latest edition) and shall maintain the insurance in full force and effect during the period 
that the local government and/or its contractors are encroaching upon the State right of way. 
 
B. In the event the local government is a self-insured entity, the local government shall 
provide the State proof of its self-insurance.  The local government agrees to pay any and all 
claims and damages that may occur during the period of this closing of the highway in 
accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
 
Article 9. AMENDMENTS 
Any changes in the time frame, character, agreement provisions or obligations of the parties 
hereto shall be enacted by written amendment executed by both the local government and 
the State. 
 
Article 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
The local government shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local environmental 
laws, regulations, ordinances and any conditions or restrictions required by the State to 
protect the natural environment and cultural resources of the State’s right of way. 
 
Article 11. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 
In case one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be 
held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof and this agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
herein. 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 
   District # ___________________ 
   Code Chart 64 #______________  
  Project:  ____________________ 
 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 5 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

Article 12. NOTICES 
All notices to either party by the other required under this agreement shall be delivered 
personally or sent by certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the 
following respective addresses: 
  

Local Government:  
 
  Mayor    
  City of Alvin    
  216 West Sealy   
  Alvin, Texas 77511   
     
 

State: 
 

Texas Department of Transportation  
 
_Eliza Paul, P.E.                     _ 
 
   District Engineer                               _ 
 
_Houston District                     _______ 
 

 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless 
otherwise provided herein.  Either party hereto may change the above address by sending 
written notice of such change to the other in the manner provided herein. 
 
Article 13. SOLE AGREEMENT 
This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties hereto and 
supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the within 
subject matter. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be executed 
in duplicate counterparts. 
 
THE CITY OF ALVIN 
 
Executed on behalf of the local government by: 
 
By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 
 Mayor 
 

_________________________________________ 
Typed or Printed Name and Title 

          
    
THE STATE OF TEXAS  
Executed for the Executive Director and approved for the Texas Transportation Commission 
for the purpose and effect of activating and/or carrying out the orders, established policies or 
work programs heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas Transportation 
Commission. 
 
By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 

District Engineer 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 
   District # ___________________ 
   Code Chart 64 #______________  
  Project:  ____________________ 
 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 6 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

 
 

Exhibit A 
“Letter of Intent with Date & Time of Event”



   Agreement No. _____________________ 
   District # ___________________ 
   Code Chart 64 #______________  
  Project:  ____________________ 
 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 7 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

 
 

Exhibit B 
Resolution 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 
   District # ___________________ 
   Code Chart 64 #______________  
  Project:  ____________________ 
 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 8 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

Exhibit C 
LOCATION MAP 

 
 









 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Parks and Recreation Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 20-R-02, finding that the Home for the Holidays event serves a public 

purpose for the City of Alvin and approving a multi-year agreement with the Texas 
Department of Transportation for the temporary closure of a portion of Business 35 (Gordon 
Street) for the parade; authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement; and setting forth other 
provisions related thereto. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   In order to facilitate the Home for the Holidays parade being located on a portion of Gordon Street 
/ Business 35, the Texas Department of Transportation requires that the City of Alvin submit an agreement for 
the temporary closure of the state right of way.  This agreement is a multi-year agreement (no to exceed 5 years).  
This resolution authorizes the agreement with TXDOT to temporarily close a portion of Gordon Street for the 
specific purpose of a parade. 
 
Each year, prior to the event, the City will send TXDOT a letter of intent outlining the event with the certificate 
of insurance but no additional TXDOT approval is required for the term of this agreement. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 20-R-02. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Res. 20-R-02 
• TXDOT Multi-Year Agreement 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 20-R-02, finding that the Home for the Holidays event 
serves a public purpose for the City of Alvin and approving a multi-year agreement 
with the Texas Department of Transportation for the temporary closure of a portion 
of Business 35 (Gordon Street) for the parade; authorizing the Mayor to sign the 
agreement; and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 



Res 20-R-02 

RESOLUTION 20-R-02 
 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS FINDING THAT THE “HOME FOR THE HOLIDAYS” EVENT 
SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE FOR THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS; AND 
APPROVING A MULTI-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH THE TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE TEMPORARY 
CLOSURE OF A PORTION OF BUSINESS 35 (GORDON STREET) FOR 
THE PARADE; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE 
AGREEMENT; AND SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS 
RELATED THERETO.  

 
WHEREAS, City of Alvin requests the temporary closure of a portion of Business 35 

(Gordon Street), located within the City of Alvin incorporated area; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Alvin finds that the “Home for the 
Holidays” event serves a public purpose, and in cooperation with the State of Texas ensures that 
the temporary closure of the State’s right of way will be performed within the State’s 
requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes the City of Alvin to enter into the Multi-Year 
Agreement for the Temporary Closure of State Right of Way with the Texas Department of 
Transportation; NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:  
 
Section 1. That the Multi-Year Agreement for the Temporary Closure of State Right of 
Way, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and made a part hereof, between the State of Texas and the 
City of Alvin, Texas, for the temporary closure of a portion of Business 35 (Gordon Street) for 
the Home for the Holidays parade, is hereby approved, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to 
execute said contract on behalf of the City of Alvin and to transmit the same to the State of 
Texas for appropriate action. 
 
Section 2. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the    16th     day of    January       , 2020.  
  
 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   ATTEST 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 

   District # ___________________ 

   Code Chart 64 #______________  

  Project:  ____________________ 

 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 1 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 
 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE 
OF STATE RIGHT OF WAY – MULTI-YEAR AGREEMENT 

FOR HOME FOR THE HOLIDAYS 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the 
Texas Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the “State,” and the City of Alvin 
Texas, a municipal corporation, acting by and through its duly authorized officers, hereinafter 
called the “local government.” 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 

WHEREAS, the State owns and operates a system of highways for public use and benefit, 
including Highway 35 and Gordon Street, in Alvin, Brazoria County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the local government has requested the temporary closure of a portion of SH 35 
(Gordon Street) for the purpose of the Home for the Holidays Parade, as described in the 
attached “Exhibit A,” hereinafter identified as the “Event;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the Event will be located within the local government’s incorporated area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State, in recognition of the public purpose of the Event, wishes to cooperate 
with the City so long as the safety and convenience of the traveling public is ensured and that 
the closure of the State’s right of way will be performed within the State’s requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the   16th    day of   January   , 20 20, the  Alvin City Council passed 
Resolution No. 20-R-02, attached hereto and identified as “Exhibit B,” establishing that the 
Event serves a public purpose and authorizing the local government to enter into this 
agreement with the State; and 
 
WHEREAS, 43 TAC, Section 22.12 establishes the rules and procedures for the temporary 
closure of a segment of the State highway system; and 
 
WHEREAS, this agreement has been developed in accordance with the rules and 
procedures of 43 TAC, Section 22.12; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties hereto, to be by them respectively kept and performed as 
hereinafter set forth, it is agreed as follows: 
 

 
 
 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 

   District # ___________________ 

   Code Chart 64 #______________  

  Project:  ____________________ 

 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 2 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

A G R E E M E N T 
 

Article 1. CONTRACT PERIOD 
This agreement becomes effective upon final execution by the State and the maximum 
duration of this agreement shall not exceed five years unless terminated or modified as 
hereinafter provided.   
 
Article 2. EVENT DESCRIPTION 
Give a physical description of the annual event and when it will be held, the limits of the 
Event, including county names and highway numbers, the number of lanes the highway has 
and the number of lanes to be used, the proposed schedule of start and stop times and dates 
at each location, a brief description of the proposed activities involved, approximate number 
of people attending the Event, number and type of animals and equipment, planned physical 
modifications of any man-made or natural features in or adjacent to the right of way involved 
shall be attached hereto along with a location map and identified as “Exhibit C.” 
 
Article 3. OPERATIONS OF THE EVENT 
A. The local government shall assume all costs for the operations associated with the Event, 
to include but not limited to, plan development, materials, labor, public notification, providing 
protective barriers and barricades, protection of highway traffic and highway facilities, and all 
traffic control and temporary signing.  
 
B. The local government shall submit to the State for review and approval the construction 
plans, if construction or modifications to the State’s right of way is required, the traffic control 
and signing plans, traffic enforcement plans, and all other plans deemed necessary by the 
State.  The State may require that any traffic control plans of sufficient complexity be signed, 
sealed and dated by a registered professional engineer.  The traffic control plan shall be in 
accordance with the latest edition of the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  
All temporary traffic control devices used on state highway right of way must be included in 
the State’s Compliant Work Zone Traffic Control Devices List.  The State reserves the right to 
inspect the implementation of the traffic control plan and if it is found to be inadequate, the 
local government will bring the traffic control into compliance with the originally submitted 
plan, upon written notice from the State noting the required changes, prior to the event.  The 
State may request changes to the traffic control plan in order to ensure public safety due to 
changing or unforeseen circumstances regarding the closure.  
 
C. The local government will ensure that the appropriate law enforcement agency has 
reviewed the traffic control for the closures and that the agency has deemed them to be 
adequate.  If the law enforcement agency is unsure as to the adequacy of the traffic control, it 
will contact the State for consultation no less than 10 workdays prior to the closure. 
 
D. The local government will complete all revisions to the traffic control plan as requested by 
the State within the required timeframe or that the agreement will be terminated upon written 
notice from the State to the local government.  The local government hereby agrees that any 
failure to cooperate with the State may constitute reckless endangerment of the public and 
that the Texas Department of Public Safety may be notified of the situation as soon as 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 

   District # ___________________ 

   Code Chart 64 #______________  

  Project:  ____________________ 

 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 3 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

possible for the appropriate action, and failing to follow the traffic control plan or State 
instructions may result in a denial of future use of the right of way for three years. 
 
E. The local government will not initiate closure prior to 24 hours before the scheduled Event 
and all barriers and barricades will be removed and the highway reopened to traffic within 24 
hours after the completion of the Event. 
 
F. The local government will provide adequate enforcement personnel to prevent vehicles 
from stopping and parking along the main lanes of highway right of way and otherwise 
prevent interference with the main lane traffic by both vehicles and pedestrians.  The local 
government will prepare a traffic enforcement plan, to be approved by the State in writing at 
least 48 hours prior to the scheduled Event.  Additionally, the local government shall provide 
to the State a letter of certification from the law enforcement agency that will be providing 
traffic control for the Event, certifying that they agree with the enforcement plan and will be 
able to meet its requirements. 
 
G. The local government hereby assures the State that there will be appropriate passage 
allowance for emergency vehicle travel and adequate access for abutting property owners 
during construction and closure of the highway facility.  These allowances and accesses will 
be included in the local government’s traffic control plan. 
 
H. The local government will avoid or minimize damage, and will, at its own expense, restore 
or repair damage occurring outside the State’s right of way and restore or repair the State’s 
right of way, including, but not limited to, roadway and drainage structures, signs, overhead 
signs, pavement markings, traffic signals, power poles and pavement, etc. to a condition 
equal to that existing before the closure, and, to the extent practicable, restore the natural 
and cultural environment in accordance with federal and state law, including landscape and 
historical features. 
 
Article 4. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
Upon completion or termination of this agreement, all documents prepared by the local 
government will remain the property of the local government.  All data prepared under this 
agreement shall be made available to the State without restriction or limitation on their further 
use. At the request of the State, the Local Government shall submit any information required 
by the State in the format directed by the State. 
 
Article 5. TERMINATION 
A. This agreement may be terminated by any of the following conditions: 
 (1) By mutual written agreement and consent of both parties. 
 (2) By the State upon determination that use of the State’s right of way is not  
  feasible or is not in the best interest of the State and the traveling public. 
 (3) By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill the obligations as set  
  forth herein. 
 (4) By satisfactory completion of all services and obligations as set forth herein. 
 
 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 

   District # ___________________ 

   Code Chart 64 #______________  

  Project:  ____________________ 

 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 4 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

B. The termination of this agreement shall extinguish all rights, duties, obligations, and 
liabilities of the State and local government under this agreement.  If the potential termination 
of this agreement is due to the failure of the local government to fulfill its contractual 
obligations as set forth herein, the State will notify the local government that possible breach 
of contract has occurred.  The local government must remedy the breach as outlined by the 
State within ten (10) days from receipt of the State’s notification.  In the event the local 
government does not remedy the breach to the satisfaction of the State, the local government 
shall be liable to the State for the costs of remedying the breach and any additional costs 
occasioned by the State. 
 
Article 6. DISPUTES 
Should disputes arise as to the parties’ responsibilities or additional work under this 
agreement, the State’s decision shall be final and binding. 
 
Article 7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or 
employee of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and 
agents. 
 
Article 8. INSURANCE 
A. Prior to beginning any work upon the State’s right of way, the local government and/or its 
contractors shall furnish to the State a completed “Certificate of Insurance” (TxDOT Form 
1560, latest edition) and shall maintain the insurance in full force and effect during the period 
that the local government and/or its contractors are encroaching upon the State right of way. 
 
B. In the event the local government is a self-insured entity, the local government shall 
provide the State proof of its self-insurance.  The local government agrees to pay any and all 
claims and damages that may occur during the period of this closing of the highway in 
accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
 
Article 9. AMENDMENTS 
Any changes in the time frame, character, agreement provisions or obligations of the parties 
hereto shall be enacted by written amendment executed by both the local government and 
the State. 
 
Article 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
The local government shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local environmental 
laws, regulations, ordinances and any conditions or restrictions required by the State to 
protect the natural environment and cultural resources of the State’s right of way. 
 
Article 11. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 
In case one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be 
held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof and this agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
herein. 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 

   District # ___________________ 

   Code Chart 64 #______________  

  Project:  ____________________ 

 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 5 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

Article 12. NOTICES 
All notices to either party by the other required under this agreement shall be delivered 
personally or sent by certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the 
following respective addresses: 
  

Local Government:  
 

  Mayor    

  City of Alvin    

  216 West Sealy   

  Alvin, Texas 77511   
     
 

State: 
 

Texas Department of Transportation  
 

_Eliza Paul, P.E.                     _ 
 

   District Engineer                               _ 
 

_Houston District                     _______ 
 

 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless 
otherwise provided herein.  Either party hereto may change the above address by sending 
written notice of such change to the other in the manner provided herein. 
 
Article 13. SOLE AGREEMENT 
This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties hereto and 
supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the within 
subject matter. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be executed 
in duplicate counterparts. 
 

THE CITY OF ALVIN 
 
Executed on behalf of the local government by: 
 

By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 
 Mayor 
 

_________________________________________ 
Typed or Printed Name and Title 

          
    

THE STATE OF TEXAS  
Executed for the Executive Director and approved for the Texas Transportation Commission 
for the purpose and effect of activating and/or carrying out the orders, established policies or 
work programs heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas Transportation 
Commission. 
 

By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 
District Engineer 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 

   District # ___________________ 

   Code Chart 64 #______________  

  Project:  ____________________ 

 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 6 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

 
 

Exhibit A 
“Letter of Intent with Date & Time of Event”



   Agreement No. _____________________ 

   District # ___________________ 

   Code Chart 64 #______________  

  Project:  ____________________ 

 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 7 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

 
 

Exhibit B 
Resolution 



   Agreement No. _____________________ 

   District # ___________________ 

   Code Chart 64 #______________  

  Project:  ____________________ 

 

Traffic–Traffic_Closure Incorporated (TEA30B)           Page 8 of 8                            Rev. 05/02/2008                                          

Exhibit C 
LOCATION MAP 

 
 









 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Parks and Recreation Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider an Agreement with Horizon International Group LLC, through the Choice 

Partners Cooperative Purchasing Network, to provide and install a 100 - ton chiller and 7.5 
HP recirculating pump, both as a direct replacement of existing equipment at the Alvin 
Police Department, in an amount not to exceed $180,306.00; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the Agreement upon legal review. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The current chiller and circulation pump are over twenty years old and have exceeded their useful 
life.  Both items were identified for replacement in the Facility Condition Assessment completed in January 
2018, added to the five-year facilities capital improvement forecast and budgeted for replacement in FY20.   
 
Advantages of using Choice Partners Cooperative Purchasing Network: 
1.) Fast Track procurement process 
2.) Lower procurement and administrative costs 
3.) Fewer change orders and claims 
4.) Competitively bid local pricing in a lump sum proposal 
5.) Ability to accomplish a substantial number of individual projects with a competitively bid contract 
6.) Oversight through Choice Partners which audits the accuracy of all job order contract proposals 
 
This project is funded in the General Projects Fund (Fund 311).   
Time of construction and lead time for chiller is anticipated at fifteen (15) weeks. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account: 311-3501-00-4150 Amount: $180,306.00 1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☐    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Horizon Proposal 
• Page 35 of Facilities Capital Improvement Program 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve an Agreement with Horizon International Group LLC, through the 

Choice Partners Cooperative Purchasing Network, to provide and install a 100 - ton 
chiller and 7.5 HP recirculating pump, both as a direct replacement of existing 
equipment at the Alvin Police Department, in an amount not to exceed $180,306.00; 
and authorize the City Manager to sign the Agreement upon legal review. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 

















 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Finance Contact:  Michael Higgins, CFO  
 
Agenda Item:   Acknowledge receipt of the 2019 Quarterly Investment Report ending December 31, 2019. 

 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:      In 2013, the City of Alvin adopted the Public Funds Investment Act pursuant to Chapter 2256 
of the Texas Government Code.   The Code contains certain requirements for investing public funds and how 
those funds are to be administered. These requirements include annual reviews of the policy, training, internal 
controls, prudence, ethics, and reporting.  
 
The City’s investment policy states that the investment officer shall generate quarterly (investment) reports to 
the City Manager, Mayor, and City council.  Attached is the quarterly report for the period ending December 
31, 2019.   
 
In summary, the City of Alvin has an investment portfolio at December 31, 2019, of $83.9 million, which 
consists of $69.3 million invested in the Local Government Investment Pools, $750,000 in Certificates of 
Deposits, and $13.8 million in the City’s bank depository accounts (i.e. checking accounts). Interest earned 
during the quarter was $309,523.  
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☒ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☒ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account: V Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☐    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
• Investment Report  

 
 

Recommendation:   Move to acknowledge receipt of the 2019 Quarterly Investment Report ending 
December 31, 2019. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☒ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Alvin 

Quarterly Investment Report 

12/31/19 

   



City of Alvin 
Investment Report Commentary 

For the Quarter Ended, December 31, 2019 
 
The City  of Alvin  has  an  investment  portfolio  at December  31,  2019,  of $83.9 million, which 
consists  of  $69.3  million  invested  in  the  Local  Government  Investment  Pools,  $750,000  in 
Certificates of Deposits, and $13.8 million in the City’s bank depository accounts (i.e. checking 
accounts).  Interest earned during the quarter was $309,523. During the previous quarter, the 
City’s total portfolio was $83.5 million, with total interest of $397,357. The total Market Value of 
the City’s portfolio  increased during the quarter by $362,000. We expect the Market Value to 
increase during the next quarter as property tax receipts will continue January. 
 
The City of Alvin earned a Weighted Average Yield‐to‐Maturity rate of 1.60% during the current 
quarter. The market benchmark that is being used as a comparison is the 90‐day T‐Bill which was 
1.58% for the quarter. The City’s yield was 2 basis points higher than the 90 day T‐Bill rate. During 
the previous quarter, the city’s Weighted Average Yield‐to‐Maturity rate was  2.06%, and the 90‐
day T‐Bill average was 1.93%, or 13 basis points more than the T‐Bill rate.  
 
The  overall  Weighted  Average  Maturity  (WAM  in  days)  was  1.5  days  during  the  quarter, 
compared to 2.4 days in the previous quarter. The WAM days are very low because 99% of the 
portfolio  is  invested  in  the 1 day maturities, primarily  investment pools.  The City’s maximum 
allowable maturity days varies on the type of  investment which can be  from 30 days up to 3 
years. The City’s $750,000 in certificates of deposits average out to 78 days in maturity. 
 
As mentioned above, the City’s benchmark rate at December 31, 2019, is the 90‐day T‐Bill, which 
had a 1.58% average for the quarter. The rate a year ago at December 31, 2018, was 2.36% with 
the  T‐Bill  rate  peaking  at  2.42%  in  March  2019.  According  to  the  Texstar  September  2019 
economic outlook, “All major risk assets continued to rally in December as optimism improved, 
trade tensions eased between the U.S. and China and recession risk abated. As such, the Treasury 
yield curve steepened and credit spreads tightened.” 
 
The City of Alvin Finance Department will continue to monitor the market rates looking for the 
best options to increase our investment earnings, while remaining in a safe position. In addition, 
we plan to monitor our bank depository balances more closely as the earnings rate for the bank 
account is currently at 1%.  



12/31/2019

Asset type CUSIP
Purchase 

Date
Maturity       

Date
Days to 
Maturity

Avg Yield 
for Qtr

Book         
Value

Market        
Value

 Net Purchases 
& Disb During 

Qtr 
 Book        
Value 

 Market      
Value 

Interest 
Earned 

During Qtr
Bank Depository/Demand Accounts open 1 1.000% 19,862,721      19,862,721      (6,001,525)          13,861,195     13,861,195    21,789         
Certificates of Deposit - Pref Life 740367GK7 9/28/2018 3/27/2020 87 2.650% 248,000           248,857           248,000          248,588         1,638           
Certificates of Deposit - Bk of Amer 06051VG67 5/30/2019 3/2/2020 62 2.350% 250,000           250,309           250,000          250,299         1,469           
Certificates of Deposit - Beal Bank 07370XWR1 1/30/2019 1/29/2020 29 2.450% 250,000           250,455           250,000          250,159         1,531           
Investment Pool - Texstar open 1 1.678% 52,023,980      52,023,980      6,215,492           58,239,472     58,239,472    234,394       
Investment Pool - Texas Class open 1 1.949% 1,842,864        1,842,864        109,016              1,951,880       1,951,880      9,016           
Investment Pool - Texpool open 1 1.737% 8,351,973        8,351,973        36,637                8,388,610       8,388,610      36,637         
Investment Pool - Texpool (TIRZ#2) open 1 1.737% 694,987           694,987           3,049                  698,036          698,036         3,049           

$83,524,525 $83,526,146 $362,669 $83,887,193 $83,888,240 $309,523

9/30/2019 12/31/2019
Book Value 83,524,525    83,887,193  

Market Value 83,526,146    83,888,240  
Change in MV $362,094

Weighted Avg Maturity (days) 2.4 1.5
 Avg Yield of 90 day T-Bill 1.93% 1.58%

 Weighted Avg YTM 2.06% 1.60%

Accrued Interest @ 12/31/19 $3,000

Chief Financial Officer

City of Alvin
Investment Portfolio
December 31, 2019

Sept 30, 2019 Dec 31, 2019

Pools
83%

CD
1%

Checking
16%

Portfolio 
Composition
Dec 31, 2019

Pools
75%

CD 1%
Checking
24%

Sepr 30, 2019

Sep 18 Dec 18 Mar 19 Jun 19 Sep 19 Dec 19

90 Day T‐Bill 2.10 2.36 2.42 2.32 1.93 1.58

City Yield 1.88 2.06 1.60

2.10

2.36 2.42
2.32

1.93 1.58
1.88 

2.06 

1.60

 ‐

 0.50

 1.00

 1.50

 2.00

 2.50

 3.00

Yi
el
d

Portfolio Performance

90 Day T‐Bill City Yield



City of Alvin

Quarterly Investment Report

December 31, 2019

Summary of Cash Investments by Fund

 Fund   Cash   Investments   Total 
111 General Fund 1,816,617             6,143,597             7,960,214            
121 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 527,917                77,813                   605,730               
123 Special Investigations Fund 35,518                   64,975                   100,493               
124 Building Security Fund 99,563                   69,768                   169,332               
125 Municipal Court Technology Fund 50,837                   ‐                         50,837                  
126 Fire Capital Fund 205,680                ‐                         205,680               
127 Tree Preservation Fund 131,319                ‐                         131,319               
128 Juvenile Case Manager Fund 103,853                ‐                         103,853               
129 Park Dedication Fund 208,206                100,000                308,206               
130 PEG Fund 380,689                ‐                         380,689               
209 Utility Fund‐ Debt Obligation 1,372,508             ‐                         1,372,508            
210 Impact Fee Fund 988,441                1,655,341             2,643,781            
211 Utility Fund‐ Debt Obligation 42,852                   8,133,118             8,175,970            
212 Sanitation Fund 266,212                1,318,721             1,584,933            
213 EMS Fund 289,952                116,330                406,282               
220 Utility Projects Fund 437,315                ‐                         437,315               
235 2015 W&S CO's  ‐                         7,302,188             7,302,188            
236 2018 Utility Bond Fund ‐                         5,892,921             5,892,921            
237 Series 2019, WSSR ‐                         16,392,503           16,392,503          
309 General Revenue Fund 943,807                ‐                         943,807               
311 General Projects Fund 807,039                500,664                1,307,703            
312 Salles Tax Fund 1,010,487             2,990,671             4,001,158            
313 2006A&C CO's 12,581                   ‐                         12,581                  
318 Series 2019, Tax & Reve CO's ‐                         16,172,268           16,172,268          
320 Sidewalk Fund 28,359                   ‐                         28,359                  
411 Debt Service Fund 387,389                21,358                   408,748               
511 Cemetery Fund 171,302                507,699                679,001               
512 Donation Fund 84,707                   28,870                   113,577               
513 Senior Fund  ‐                         12,024                   12,024                  
611 Fleet Maintenance Fund 606,545                121,288                727,833               
612 Vehicle/Equipment Replacement Fund 1,285,444             1,705,845             2,991,289            
613 IT Support & Maintenance Fund 607,751                ‐                         607,751               
614 Computer Replacement Fund 333,080                ‐                         333,080               
801 TIRZ #1 Star State T3 10,061                   ‐                         10,061                  
802 TIRZ #2 Kendall Lakes T4 542,342                ‐                         542,342               
803 TIRZ #3 Savannah Plantation T5 15,505                   ‐                         15,505                  
804 RD Authority 57,317                   698,036                755,353               

Total 13,861,195           70,025,998           83,887,193          



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department: Fire/EMS Contact: Ron Schmitz, EMS Director 
 
Agenda Item:   Consider the 2020 Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Services with Brazoria County 

Emergency Services District #3 (ESD); and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The Emergency Services District was first formed in 2004.  Brazoria County Commissioners  select  
five (5) ESD Board of Directors to authorize and appropriate funding for Fire and Emergency Medical Services 
(EMS) to the approximate 120 square miles surrounding the city limits of Alvin.  
 
Typically, each entity is allowed to submit a budget to the (5 member) ESD Board of Directors each year. The 
Board then reviews the budget-requests and asks each entity to do a short presentation on their budget-request. 
The Board, subsequently allocates/awards the funds to each entity, accordingly.   However, this year the ESD 
had administrative turmoil and lost several staff.  Thus, staff was not given an opportunity to have a budget 
meeting/presentation, and very little changes were made to the previous year’s budget and interlocal agreements.  
 
   
In 2018, the ESD paid a total of $700,000 to the City of Alvin for the following Emergency Services:  

• $350,000 for Fire and Rescue 
• $350,000 for Emergency Medical Services 

 
 
In 2019, the ESD paid a total of $731,000 to the City of Alvin for the following Emergency Services:  

• $362,000 for Fire and Rescue 
• $369,000 for Emergency Medical Services 

 
The 2020 proposed ESD Agreement with the City of Alvin will increase to a total of $738,240 to the City of 
Alvin for the following Emergency Services: 

• $369,240 ($7,240 increase) for Fire and Rescue   
• $369,000 for Emergency Medical Services  

 
Staff recommends approval. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☒ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount: $738,240 1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  
 



 

Supporting documents attached: 
• 2020 Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Services 

 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve the 2020 Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Services with 
Brazoria County Emergency Services District #3 (ESD); and authorize the Mayor to 
sign upon legal review.  

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 























 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 
Meeting Date:   1/16/2020 

Department:  Engineering Contact:   Michelle Segovia, City Engineer 
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 20-B, amending Chapter 24-1/2, Manufactured Homes and 

Manufactured Home Parks, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, for the 
purpose of amending Article V. Recreational Vehicle Parks and Resorts, by not allowing 
for the construction of new Recreational Vehicle Resorts; providing for a penalty; and 
setting forth other provisions related thereto. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On July 6, 2017 Council approved Ordinance 17-L which defined and allowed for the 
construction of Recreational Vehicle Resorts. Since Ordinance 17-L was approved there has been one RV 
Resort (along Nelson Road) approved and will start construction soon.  
 
On July 30, 2019 a joint workshop was held with the City Council and the City Planning Commission, at this 
workshop the Recreational Vehicle Ordinance was discussed, and Council conveyed to the Planning 
Commission that they would consider proposed amendments to the ordinance. 
 
On September 17, 2019, the Planning Commission discussed the Recreational Vehicle Ordinance and 
requested that Staff draft an amendment to the ordinance that would prevent the construction of new 
Recreational Vehicle Resorts. Staff drafted the amendment to the ordinance (Ord. 20-B) and presented it to the 
Planning Commission on October 15, 2019 for their consideration. The Planning Commission voted 5 votes to 
1 vote to approve Ordinance 19-Y. Commission Member Hartman voted against the ordinance, stating that he 
felt there needed to be requirements in the ordinance allowing for the construction of new RV Resorts. 
 
On November 7, 2019, City Council took no action on Ordinance 19-Y and suggested that the ordinance be 
further amended to restrict where new RV Resorts can be built versus not allowing new resorts to be 
constructed all together. On December 17, 2019 the Planning Commission discussed some options with 
regards to amending the ordinance and ultimately voted 4 votes to 1 vote to send Ordinance 19-Y back to 
Council in its original form for consideration, therefore reaffirming their proposal to amend the ordinance by 
not allowing for the construction of new RV Resorts. Commission Member Hartman voted against the 
ordinance for the same reason that he voted against it originally at the September 2019 meeting.  The 
Ordinance number has changed to reflect the 2020 year from Ord 19-Y to Ord 20-B. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 



 

• Ordinance 20-B (Redlined and Clean Versions) 
 

 Move to approve / deny Ordinance 20-B, amending Chapter 24-1/2, Manufactured 
Homes and Manufactured Home Parks, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, 
Texas, for the purpose of amending Article V. Recreational Vehicle Parks and 
Resorts, by not allowing for the construction of new Recreational Vehicle Resorts; 
providing for a penalty; and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 

 
Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 
 



ORDINANCE 20-B 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 24½, MANUFACTURED HOMES AND MANUFACTURED 
HOME PARKS, BY AMENDING ARTICLE V. RECREATIONAL 
VEHICLE PARKS, AND SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS 
RELATED THERETO. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ALVIN: 
 
Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas; is hereby amended by amending 
Article V, Recreational Vehicle Parks, which said article shall read as follows: 

 
Article V.  Recreational Vehicle Resorts and Parks  

 
“Sec. 24½-85. – Purpose and intent. 

(a) The city council finds that properly planned and operated Recreational Vehicle (RV) resort 
communities and parks: 

 
(1) Promote the health and safety of the occupants or guests of such communities and of 

other nearby communities; and 
 
(2) Encourage economical and orderly development of such communities and of other 

nearby communities. 
 

(b) This ordinance is enacted to achieve orderly operation and maintenance of RV resorts and 
parks, and establishes minimum standards with which all RV resorts and parks must comply. 

 
(c) No new recreational vehicle resorts or recreational vehicle parks will be allowed within the 

city limits. Any recreational vehicle resort or park located in the city legally, prior to the enactment 
of this article shall be allowed to remain, but shall not be allowed to expand or be modified, except 
as defined below, under any circumstance. 

 
(d) An existing resort or park may expand by increasing the number of spaces confined within 

the resort or park, if all other provisions in this Code are met.  
 
Sec. 24½-86. – Applicability. 
 

(a) This article shall apply to all recreational vehicle resorts and parks to be licensed within 
the city limits. No person shall maintain or operate a recreational vehicle resort or park within the 
city's corporate limits except in conformity with this article.  
 



(b) All recreational vehicle resort and park facilities and recreational vehicles shall conform, 
without limitation, to the codes and ordinances of the city, including the building, plumbing, 
electrical, and fire codes, and all applicable state and federal laws.  
 
Sec. 24½-87. – Scope and jurisdiction. 
 

(a) This article is intended to be all-inclusive of elements to be regulated by the city. 
 

(b) Where differences occur between state and local standards affecting building, electrical, 
plumbing, and fire protection elements, the more restrictive code shall govern.  

 
(c) Any decision to regulate elements of recreational vehicle resorts or parks as they relate to 

location affecting offsite impacts shall be the sole determination of the city.  
 
(d) Federal regulations under the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration may 

supersede all or part of this article as applied to any category of regulated motor vehicles.  
 
Sec. 24½-88. – Fees. 
 
The schedule of fees as set forth in chapter 28 shall apply to this article.  
 
Sec. 24½-89. – Definitions. 
 

For the purpose of this article, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 
indicates or requires a different meaning:  
 

Accessory structure. Any structural addition to the recreational vehicle or site, including 
awnings, cabanas, carports, garages, porches, storage cabinets, storage sheds, and similar 
appurtenant structures. This does not include awnings or canopies that are built in the RV itself. 

 
Agent. Any person authorized by the licensee of a recreational vehicle resort or park to be a 

representative, manager, or operator to maintain such recreational vehicle resort or park under the 
provisions of this article.  

 
Building official. The building official, the fire marshal, or code compliance officer of the City 

of Alvin, Texas, or their designee.  
 
City. The City of Alvin, Texas.  
 
Code Compliance Official. The official of the city or his/her designee charged with the code 

enforcement of the provisions of this article. 
 
Common access route. A private roadway which affords a principal means of access to 

individual recreational vehicle spaces or auxiliary buildings in a recreational vehicle resort or park.  
 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level2/PTIICOOR_CH28COFEOR.html#PTIICOOR_CH28COFEOR


Common parking area. A common area within a recreational vehicle park or resort for the 
parking of automobiles or other small vehicles of visitors and the temporary storage of trailered 
boats belonging to recreational vehicle resort or park occupants, the dimensions of which are at 
least one hundred eighty (180) square feet.  

 
Driveway. A minor entrance-way off the common access route within a recreational vehicle 

resort or park or from a public street into an off-street parking area serving one or more recreational 
vehicle spaces.  

 
Fencing. A masonry fence, wood fence or other opaque fencing pre-approved by the building 

official.  
 
Habitable. There is no defect, damage, or deterioration to the recreational vehicle which 

creates a dangerous or unsafe situation or condition; that the plumbing, heating, and electrical 
systems are in safe working order; that the walls, floor, and roof are free from any substantial 
openings not designed; are structurally sound in accordance with laws of the state, and that all 
exterior doors and windows are in place.  

 
Install or installation When used in reference to recreational vehicles and/or recreational 

vehicle resorts or parks, it shall mean the construction of the foundation systems, and the placement 
and erection of a recreational vehicle or components on the foundation system and includes 
supporting and proper connection of multiple or expandable sections or components.  

 
Internal street. The same as common access route.  
 
Licensee. Any person licensed to operate and maintain a recreational vehicle resort or park 

under the provisions of this article.  
 
Lot. An individual space for a single recreational vehicle as defined herein.  
 
Lot parking space. A space for the parking of vehicles which are located within the boundaries 

of a recreational vehicle lot.  
 
Manager.  A person/s that is responsible for the control, direction, management, supervision 

and/or maintenance of the RV resort or park seven (7) days per week, 24 hours a day.  This person/s 
may or may not be the owner of the RV resort or park. 

 
Occupant. Any person who occupies a recreational vehicle which is located in a recreational 

vehicle resort or park.  
 
Owner. A person who has contractual responsibility for the property, or person who has the 

legal right of possession of the property. 
 
Pad. The area within the lot set aside for the placement of the recreational vehicle.  
 



Recreational vehicle (hereinafter referred to as "RV").  A vehicular-type camping unit 
primarily designed as temporary living quarters for recreational camping, travel, or seasonal use 
that either has its own motor power or is mounted on or towed by another vehicle. All RV’s must 
be registered with the Texas Department of Motor Vehicles, and be “road ready.”  These vehicles 
include camping/pop-up trailers, fifth-wheel trailers, motor homes, recreational park trailers, travel 
trailers, and truck campers.  Recreational vehicles must be certified by the manufacturer as 
complying with ANSI (American National Standards Institute), A119.2 for recreational vehicles 
and A119.5 park trailers.   

 
A recreational vehicle is not a mobile home or a HUD-Code manufactured dwelling as defined 

in city codes and ordinances.  
 

(a) Camping/pop-up trailer.  A recreational vehicle that is mounted on wheels for towing 
by a motorized vehicle and constructed with side walls that collapse for towing and storage 
and unfold for use.  
 

(b) Fifth-wheel trailer.  A recreational vehicle designed to be towed by a motorized vehicle 
that contains a towing mechanism that is mounted above or forward of the tow vehicle's rear 
axle.  
 

(c) Motor home.  A recreational vehicle built on or permanently attached to a self-propelled 
motor vehicle chassis or on a chassis cab or van that is an integral part of the completed vehicle.  
 

(d) Recreational park trailer.  A recreational vehicle that meets the following criteria:  
 

(1) Built on a single chassis mounted on wheels. 
 
(2) Certified by the manufacturer as complying with ANSI (American National 

Standards Institute) A119.5. 
 

(e) Travel trailer. A recreational vehicle designed to be towed by a motorized vehicle 
containing a towing mechanism that is mounted behind the tow vehicle's bumper.  
 

(f) Truck camper. A recreational vehicle consisting of a roof, floor, and sides designed to 
be loaded onto and unloaded from the bed of a pickup truck.  
 
Recreational vehicle park (hereinafter referred to as “park”).  Any parcel of land development 

for the placement of recreational vehicles on a temporary basis, located and arranged on a tract of 
land which is less than ten (10) acres and which has been permitted for such purpose in compliance 
with this article, with the individual spaces being held under a common ownership and rented or 
leased to the occupants.  
 

Recreational vehicle resort (hereinafter referred to as “RV Resort”).  Any lot tract, or parcel 
of land ten (10) acres or more of unified development of recreational vehicle spaces provided for 
recreational vehicle use with community facilities and permitted permanent buildings developed 
for the placement of recreational vehicles on a temporary basis, located and arranged on a tract of 



land which has been permitted for such purpose in compliance with this article, with the individual 
spaces being held under a common ownership and rented or leased to the occupants. 

 
Site plan. A drawing showing the use of a parcel of land and the locations of existing and 

proposed buildings, drives, sidewalks, parking areas, drainage facilities, and other structures to be 
constructed in relation to surveyed boundaries, and are consistent with other City of Alvin existing 
ordinances (i.e. storm water drainage). 

 
Uninhabitable. Is limited to the deterioration to an RV that has created a dangerous or unsafe 

situation or condition, and the RV is not structurally sound in accordance with the certification by 
the manufacturer as complying with ANSI (American National Standards Institute), A119.2, 
A119.5 or the International Building Code as presently adopted by the city.  Uninhabitable RV's 
will not be allowed to remain within the city limits.  
 
 
Sec. 24½-90. – Recreational vehicles outside licensed RV resort or park. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to reside in a recreational vehicle or to connect a recreational 
vehicle to the city's water or sanitary sewer system within the corporate limits of the city except in 
a licensed recreational vehicle resort or park as authorized under this article.  
 
Sec. 24½-91. – Emergency evacuation requirements. 
 

During a National Weather Service issued Hurricane Warning or alert periods, RVs shall be:  
 

(1) Removed from the corporate limits of the city; or 
(2) Stored securely in a permanent building which meets all the requirements of the applicable 

standard codes included in this Code.  
 

The RV park or resort owner shall provide the following minimum information to the 
occupants: 

 
(1) Informing the occupants of the advantage of evacuation prior to an evacuation order; 
(2) Providing staff and occupants with information about evacuation routes; and 
(3) Providing staff and occupants with a list of shelters.  

 
Sec. 24½-92. – Buffering. 
 

(a) RV resort property shall be buffered from other adjoining properties with earthen berms 
and/or landscaping.  If fencing is erected, it shall be made from brick, stone, masonry, wood, or 
wrought iron or black-clad cyclone, at least six (6) feet in height on the property.  The fence must 
be maintained in good repair as long as the RV resort remains in operation.   

 
(b) If an RV resort is adjacent to a lake as an amenity, the fencing requirement is not required 

along the lake side.   
 



Sec. 24½-93. – Size of RV resort density.  
 

The minimum size of a RV resort shall be ten (10) acres.  
  
Sec. 24½-94. – Office, restrooms, and other facilities; recreation area. 
 

(a) Each RV resort must have a building or buildings for an office for the manager of the RV 
resort, a bathroom and shower facilities, and laundry facilities.  All facilities used by occupants 
must be well lit inside and out.  All facilities must meet applicable codes adopted by the city. 

 
(b) Recreation areas include space for community buildings and community use facilities such 

as restroom and shower facilities, adult recreation (basketball court or tennis court), playgrounds 
for children, and swimming pools.  All RV resorts will have at least one (1) furnished recreation 
area club house located as to be free of traffic hazards, and easily accessible to all RV resort 
occupants.  Each club house can have a non-commercial kitchenette, as well as restrooms and a 
general seating area, stage area, exercise room, media/computer/business center, and attached 
patio, including a swimming pool, sauna, and hot tub. At a minimum, each RV resort will have 
one (1) swimming pool.  
 
Sec. 24½-57. – Soil and ground cover. 
 

Exposed ground surfaces in all parts of the RV resort shall be concrete or paved, or protected 
with vegetative cover that is capable of preventing soil erosion and eliminating dust.  All 
pavements shall be kept in good repair. 
 
Sec. 24½-96. – Landscaping. 
 

The RV resort owner or manager shall be responsible for maintaining the entire area of the RV 
resort free of dry brush, leaves, limbs, or weeds. 
  
Sec. 24½-97. – Storage, collection and disposal of refuse and garbage. 
 

The RV resort owner or manager shall pick up daily all refuse from each pad site or according 
to RV resort rules and regulations.  
  
Sec. 24½-98. – Water. 
 

(a) All water lines and connections must comply with city and state codes. 
 

(b) The RV resort owner or manager shall have complete maintenance responsibility for the 
water system within the RV resort. 

 
(c) The city has no maintenance responsibility for service lines within the RV resort.  The 

responsibility of the city stops at the property line. 
 

 



Sec. 24½-99. – Waste Water. 
 

All waste water lines and connections must comply with city and state codes.  Each RV resort 
shall be required to connect to city water and sewer mains.  
 
Sec. 24½-100. – Streets. 
 

(a) “No parking” signage must be installed and maintained along the entrance road to RV 
resort. 

 
(b) All internal streets shall be built in compliance with city standards.  
(c) All streets shall have standard street signs erected at appropriate points. 

 
(1) All lots, pads, or spaces shall be sequentially numbered and the numbers shall be 

displayed in a manner that is clearly visible from the street. 
 

(2) Adequate security lighting shall be provided to illuminate all common areas and RV 
lots. 

 
(3) Street lights shall be provided along all internal streets at a maximum spacing of three 

hundred (300) feet between lights and at all street intersections. 
 

(4) Directional lighting methods shall be used when installing building or street lights.  The 
direction of the light shall be downward.  Upward or outward lighting will not be acceptable.  
Directional lighting will prevent unnecessary or unwanted light spill over into adjacent areas 
or properties. 

 
Sec. 24½-101. – Parking. 
 

(a) A minimum of (one) 1 off street parking space shall be provided for each RV lot space. 
 

(b) Off-street parking areas must be provided for visitors and guests.  
 

(c) The minimum lot parking size shall be nine (9) feet in width by twenty (20) feet in depth 
and made of concrete.  
 
Sec. 24½-102. – Sidewalks. 
 

A pedestrian walkway plan shall be submitted in conjunction with the landscape plan.  
 
Sec. 24½- 103. – Electrical service. 
 

Each lot within the RV resort shall be provided with an approved electrical wiring system 
electrical service.  All electrical service shall be installed underground from the secondary meter 
to the lot and installed in accordance with the National Electrical Code.  All electrical distributions 
and connections must comply with applicable city and state codes.  



 
Sec. 24½-104. – Size of individual sites; pad requirements. 
 

Each recreational vehicle lot within the RV resort shall have a minimum area of nine hundred 
fifty (950) square feet.  
 
Sec. 24½-105. – Dumpsters. 
 

Garbage dumpster(s) shall be provided by the RV resort in the size and numbers appropriate 
for the number of lots.  The dumpster pad shall be constructed of concrete.  The fencing for the 
dumpster shall be constructed of CMU with heavy duty steel gating, and must not be easily 
recognized as a dumpster.  Pickup service shall be provided no less than once weekly. 
 
Sec. 24½- 106. – Rules and regulations for RV resorts and parks to be adopted by owner. 
 

(a) Each owner or his/her agent shall comply with all applicable regulations of the city.  In 
addition, it shall be the duty of the owner to prescribe rules and regulations for the management of 
the resort or park, to make adequate provisions for the enforcement of such rules, and to subscribe 
to all subsequent rules and regulations which may be adopted for the management of the resort or 
park.  Copies of all the rules and regulations shall be furnished to the building official upon request.   

(b) It shall be the duty of each owner or manager to keep a register containing a record of all 
visiting guests.  The register shall contain the following information:  

(1) The name and home address of the owner of each recreational vehicle or guest.  
(2) The make, model, year, license, and state of issue of tow vehicle, motor-powered 

recreational vehicle, and a copy of a valid driver’s license along with proof of insurance for 
guests.  

(3) The date of arrival and departure of each recreational vehicle or guest.  
(4) The location of each recreational vehicle within the resort by unit number and street 

address.  
(5) The name, address, and phone number of contact in case of emergency.(6) The 

register shall be kept available at all time for inspection by law enforcement officers.  
(c) Maintain current site map of the premises showing location, size, and depth of all utility, 

gas, or other lines within the RV resort.  
 
Sec. 24½-107. – License issuance. 
 

(a) License required.  It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a RV resort or park unless 
such person holds a valid license issued in the name of the person for a specific resort or park.  

(b) Application for license.  
(1) All applications for a license to operate an RV resort or park shall be on forms furnished 

by the city, signed by the applicant, and accompanied by the annual license fee.  The 
application shall contain the following:  



a. The name, address and contact phone number of the applicant.  If the applicant is 
not the owner of the premises on which the RV resort or park is located, the applicant shall 
provide the name and address of the owner with a copy of the lease between the applicant 
and the owner;  

b. The day and night phone number for the owner or manager;  
c. The RV resort or park’s street address; and  
d. The legal description of the RV resort or park.  

(2) If the applicant is not the owner, the applicant must be a lessee of the owner pursuant 
to a written lease having a remaining term (including any provisions for renewal and extension 
of such lease) of not less than the term for which the license will be issued.  

(3) The building official shall grant such application and issue a license to operate an RV 
resort or park to the applicant unless he or she finds the information contained in the application 
to be inaccurate.  

(4) The park must comply with all code standards prior to issuance of a license.  
(c) License fee.  Each resort or park shall pay an annual license fee in addition to a fee for each 

recreational vehicle lot as set forth in chapter 28.  
(d) License expiration.  The license shall expire on January 31 of each calendar year following 

the year in which it is issued.  All licenses shall be renewed on or before January 31 of each year.  
(e) Application for license renewal.  Each year a resort or park owner shall make application 

to renew a license to operate a resort or park and shall submit the annual license fee.  All terms of 
the initial license issuance applies to license renewal.  An application for a renewal license shall 
reflect any change in the information from the preceding application.  The building official shall 
grant such application unless the information contained therein is inaccurate or unless the building 
official believes that the licensee committed or allowed a violation of any provision of this article 
applicable to such resort or park to occur and which has not been corrected.  

(f) Renewal of suspended license prohibited.  A suspended license may not be renewed during 
the period for which it was suspended.  
 
Sec. 24½-108. – Transfer of license; fee. 
 

(a) Any person desiring to purchase an existing resort or park shall apply for a transfer of 
license on forms furnished by the city.  The transfer of license application shall be signed by the 
licensee and shall contain information as the building official may reasonably require to assure the 
building official that the resort or park is being and will be operated in compliance with all the 
requirements of this article.  The transfer of license application shall be accompanied by the license 
transfer fee as set forth in chapter 28.  

(b) A suspended license may not be transferred during the period for which it was suspended.  
 
 
 
 



Sec. 24½-109. – Appeal from denial of license. 
 

Any person whose application for a license to operate a RV resort or park is denied, or any 
person whose application to renew or transfer such license has been denied by the building official, 
may appeal to the Building Board of Adjustment & Appeals (BBOAA) and shall be granted a 
hearing on the matter.  The BBOAA shall affirm or reverse the denial of such application by the 
building official, by majority vote of its members present and voting at any regular or special 
meeting.  If the decision of the building official is reversed by the BBOAA, the building official 
shall issue the license or any renewal or transfer the same with such requirements as the majority 
of the BBOAA may reasonably require.  Any decision of the BBOAA in such appeal shall be final.  
 
 
Sec. 24½-110. – Maintenance and operation of RV resorts and parks 
 

(a)  Fire safety standards.  
(1) Storage and handling of liquefied petroleum gases.  In RV resorts and parks in which 

liquefied petroleum gases are stored and dispensed, their handling and storage shall comply 
with requirements of chapter 9.  

(2) Storage and handling of flammable liquids.  In RV resorts and parks in which gasoline, 
fuel, oil, or other flammable liquids are stored and/or dispensed, their handling and storage 
shall comply with the provisions of chapter 9.  

(3) Firefighting.  Approaches to all lots shall be kept clear at all times for access by 
firefighting equipment.  The RV resort or park shall provide an adequate water supply for fire 
department operations which shall be connected to the city’s public water supply system.  This 
shall include standard city fire hydrants located within three hundred (300) feet of all lots 
measured along the driveways and internal streets of the RV resort.  The fire hydrants shall be 
made available for periodic inspection by the city’s fire department and water department.  The 
adequacy of the water supply for firefighting shall be determined by state standards and the 
fire code adopted by the city.  

(4) Barbecue pits, fireplaces, and stoves.  All fireplaces, wood burning stoves, chimneys, 
chimeneas and other forms of outdoor cooking shall be located, constructed, maintained and 
used as to minimize fire hazards and smoke nuisance both in the area where used and in 
neighboring area of the RV resort or park.  No uncontained open fire shall be permitted in the 
RV resort or park.  

(5) Portable fire extinguishers.  Portable fire extinguishers shall be located throughout the 
RV resort or park in compliance with city ordinances and any applicable state or federal 
regulations.  

(6) Extension cords.  Extension cords shall not be permitted, except the electrical supply 
cord that is UL listed for recreational vehicles and complies with the fire code adopted by the 
city.  

(7) Fire department access.  All RV resorts and parks shall comply with the fire department 
access requirements of chapter 9.  



(b) Insect and rodent control.  Grounds, buildings, and structures shall be maintained free of 
insect and rodent harborage and infestation.  Extermination methods and other measures to control 
insects and rodents shall conform to the requirements of the city health official.  
 
Sec. 24½-111. – Telephone. 
 

A minimum of one (1) landline telephone shall be provided in an easily accessible location 
twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, for emergency use. 

Sec. 24½-112. – Accessory structures.The individual lots within RV resorts and parks, and/or 
individual RVs, are not allowed to have accessory structures as defined herein.  Additionally, all 
RVs must be removeable within one (1) hour notice by the RV resort or park owner or manager. 
 
Sec. 24½-113. – Sanitary facilities. 
 

Sanitary facilities shall be provided at amenity locations such as lakes, pools, spas, etc.  Such 
facilities must meet all requirements of the City of Alvin Ordinances. 
 
Sec. 24½-114. – Inspection of RV resorts and parks. 
 

(a) The building official, the health official, the fire chief, the chief of police or their respective 
authorized designees, shall have the right and are hereby directed at all reasonable times to enter 
upon any premises for which a license to operate a park has been issued for the purpose of 
determining satisfactory compliance with this chapter and all other applicable ordinances and laws.  
The official shall present proper identification upon request. 

(b) The RV resort owner or manager shall be responsible for insuring that all RV utility 
connections, common facilities, and grounds comply with this chapter. 

(c) RV resort or park owners and managers shall permit the building official to enter and 
inspect the RV resort or park, without prior notice, during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Saturday.  

(d) In case of emergency, where extreme hazards are known to exist that may involve 
imminent injury to persons, loss of life, or severe property damage, the building official may enter 
the premises at any time. The building official is hereby authorized to obtain a search warrant as 
provided by law if denied admission to inspect any such premises.  

Sec. 24½-115. – Penalty. 
 

Any person who violates any provision, restriction or requirement of this article shall be guilty 
of a misdemeanor which shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed the amount as prescribed by 
section 1-5. Each day of violation of this article shall constitute a separate offense. Prosecution in 
municipal court shall be in addition to other remedies provided in this article, by law, or in equity.  
 
 
Sec. 24½-116. – Violation; suspension; appeal. 
 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level2/PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR.html#PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-5GEPECOVI
http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level2/PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR.html#PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-5GEPECOVI


(a) Upon inspection of any resort or park, whenever the building official, the health officer, 
the fire chief, the chief of police, or their respective authorized designee, finds that conditions or 
practices exist at the resort or park which are in violation of any provision of this article, the 
building official shall issue to the owner of the resort or park or his or her agent a written notice 
setting forth each condition or practice that exists.  The notice shall inform the owner or his agent 
that unless the condition or practice is corrected or stopped within the time specified in the notice, 
the license to operate the resort or park shall be suspended.  The specified time for compliance 
shall be determined by the building official. At the end of the notice period, the building official 
shall re-inspect the resort or park and, if all conditions or practices stated in the notice have not 
been corrected or stopped, the building official shall immediately suspend the license of the owner 
to operate the resort or park for the period of time the building official deems appropriate.  

 
(b) Any person whose license to operate a resort or park is suspended shall have the right to 

have the suspension reviewed by the BBOAA.  The BBOAA shall affirm or reverse the suspension 
of such license by the building official, by majority vote of its members present and voting at any 
regular or special meeting.  If the decision of the building official is reversed by the BBOAA, the 
BBOAA may either reinstate the license or suspend it for a lesser period of time than that for which 
it was suspended by the building official.  Any decision of the BBOAA in the appeal shall be final.  
 
Section 2. That except as amended herein all other provisions of Chapter 24½ of the Code of 
Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, shall remain in full force and effect.  To the extent of any conflict 
or inconsistency between the provisions of this Ordinance and any other ordinance, the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall control. 
 
Section 3. Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, illegal, 
or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof ineffective or 
inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such section or part 
shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; but as to such 
remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and to this end the 
provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 4. Penalty Provision.  Any person, firm, corporation or business entity violating this 
Ordinance if deemed guilty, and upon conviction thereof shall be fined as set forth herein.  Each 
unlawful act or continuing day’s violation under this Ordinance shall constitute a separate 
offense.  The penal provision imposed under this Ordinance shall not preclude the City of Alvin 
from filing suit to enjoin the violation.  The City of Alvin retains all legal rights and remedies 
available to it pursuant to local, state and federal law. 
 
Section 5. Publication.  The City Secretary of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish this 
ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as required 
by the Charter of the City of Alvin, Texas. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 52, Texas Local Government Code 
and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 



Section7. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading on the ______day of __________, 2020. 

 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ______________________________  

Dixie Roberts, City Secretary          Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 



ORDINANCE 20-B 19-Y 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 24½, MANUFACTURED HOMES AND MANUFACTURED 
HOME PARKS, BY AMENDING ARTICLE V. RECREATIONAL 
VEHICLE PARKS, AND SETTING FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS 
RELATED THERETO. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ALVIN: 
 
Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas; is hereby amended by amending 
Article V, Recreational Vehicle Parks, which said article shall read as follows: 

 
Article V.  Recreational Vehicle Resorts and Parks  

 
“Sec. 24½-85. – Purpose and intent. 

(a) The city council finds that properly planned and operated Recreational Vehicle (RV) resort 
communities and parks: 

 
(1) Promote the health and safety of the occupants or guests of such communities and of 

other nearby communities; and 
 
(2) Encourage economical and orderly development of such communities and of other 

nearby communities. 
 

(b) This ordinance is enacted to achieve orderly development operation and maintenance of 
RV resorts and parks, and establishes minimum standards with which all new RV resorts and parks 
must comply. 

 
(c) No new recreational vehicle resorts or recreational vehicle parks will be allowed within the 

city limits. Any recreational vehicle resort or park located in the city legally, prior to the enactment 
of this article shall be allowed to remain, but shall not be allowed to expand or be modified, except 
as defined below, under any circumstance. 

 
(d) An existing resort or park may expand by increasing the number of spaces confined within 

the resort or park, if all other provisions in this Code are met.  
 
Sec. 24½-86. – Applicability. 
 

(a) This article shall apply to all recreational vehicle resorts and parks to be licensed within 
the city limits. No person shall maintain or operate a recreational vehicle resort or park within the 
city's corporate limits except in conformity with this article.  
 



(b) All recreational vehicle resort and park facilities and recreational vehicles shall conform, 
without limitation, to the codes and ordinances of the city, including the building, plumbing, 
electrical, and fire codes, and all applicable state and federal laws.  
 
Sec. 24½-87. – Scope and jurisdiction. 
 

(a) This article is intended to be all-inclusive of elements to be regulated by the city. 
 

(b) Where differences occur between state and local standards affecting building, electrical, 
plumbing, and fire protection elements, the more restrictive code shall govern.  

 
(c) Any decision to regulate elements of recreational vehicle resorts or parks as they relate to 

location affecting offsite impacts shall be the sole determination of the city.  
 
(d) Federal regulations under the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration may 

supersede all or part of this article as applied to any category of regulated motor vehicles.  
 
Sec. 24½-88. – Fees. 
 
The schedule of fees as set forth in chapter 28 shall apply to this article.  
 
Sec. 24½-89. – Definitions. 
 

For the purpose of this article, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 
indicates or requires a different meaning:  
 

Accessory structure. Any structural addition to the recreational vehicle or site, including 
awnings, cabanas, carports, garages, porches, storage cabinets, storage sheds, and similar 
appurtenant structures. This does not include awnings or canopies that are built in the RV itself. 

 
Agent. Any person authorized by the licensee of a recreational vehicle resort or park to be a 

representative, manager, or operator to maintain such recreational vehicle resort or park under the 
provisions of this article.  

 
Building official. The building official, the fire marshal, or code compliance officer of the City 

of Alvin, Texas, or their designee.  
 
City. The City of Alvin, Texas.  
 
Code Compliance Official. The official of the city or his/her designee charged with the code 

enforcement of the provisions of this article. 
 
Common access route. A private roadway which affords a principal means of access to 

individual recreational vehicle spaces or auxiliary buildings in a recreational vehicle resort or park.  
 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level2/PTIICOOR_CH28COFEOR.html#PTIICOOR_CH28COFEOR


Common parking area. A common area within a recreational vehicle park or resort for the 
parking of automobiles or other small vehicles of visitors and the temporary storage of trailered 
boats belonging to recreational vehicle resort or park occupants, the dimensions of which are at 
least one hundred eighty (180) square feet.  

 
Driveway. A minor entrance-way off the common access route within a recreational vehicle 

resort or park or from a public street into an off-street parking area serving one or more recreational 
vehicle spaces.  

 
Fencing. A masonry fence, wood fence or other opaque fencing pre-approved by the building 

official.  
 
Habitable. There is no defect, damage, or deterioration to the recreational vehicle which 

creates a dangerous or unsafe situation or condition; that the plumbing, heating, and electrical 
systems are in safe working order; that the walls, floor, and roof are free from any substantial 
openings not designed; are structurally sound in accordance with laws of the state, and that all 
exterior doors and windows are in place.  

 
Install or installation When used in reference to recreational vehicles and/or recreational 

vehicle resorts or parks, it shall mean the construction of the foundation systems, and the placement 
and erection of a recreational vehicle or components on the foundation system and includes 
supporting and proper connection of multiple or expandable sections or components.  

 
Internal street. The same as common access route.  
 
Licensee. Any person licensed to operate and maintain a recreational vehicle resort or park 

under the provisions of this article.  
 
Lot. An individual space for a single recreational vehicle as defined herein.  
 
Lot parking space. A space for the parking of vehicles which are located within the boundaries 

of a recreational vehicle lot.  
 
Manager.  A person/s that is responsible for the control, direction, management, supervision 

and/or maintenance of the RV resort or park seven (7) days per week, 24 hours a day.  This person/s 
may or may not be the owner of the RV resort or park. 

 
Occupant. Any person who occupies a recreational vehicle which is located in a recreational 

vehicle resort or park.  
 
Owner. A person who has contractual responsibility for the property, or person who has the 

legal right of possession of the property. 
 
Pad. The area within the lot set aside for the placement of the recreational vehicle.  
 



Recreational vehicle (hereinafter referred to as "RV").  A vehicular-type camping unit 
primarily designed as temporary living quarters for recreational camping, travel, or seasonal use 
that either has its own motor power or is mounted on or towed by another vehicle. All RV’s must 
be registered with the Texas Department of Motor Vehicles, and be “road ready.”  These vehicles 
include camping/pop-up trailers, fifth-wheel trailers, motor homes, recreational park trailers, travel 
trailers, and truck campers.  Recreational vehicles must be certified by the manufacturer as 
complying with ANSI (American National Standards Institute), A119.2 for recreational vehicles 
and A119.5 park trailers.   

 
A recreational vehicle is not a mobile home or a HUD-Code manufactured dwelling as defined 

in city codes and ordinances.  
 

(a) Camping/pop-up trailer.  A recreational vehicle that is mounted on wheels for towing 
by a motorized vehicle and constructed with side walls that collapse for towing and storage 
and unfold for use.  
 

(b) Fifth-wheel trailer.  A recreational vehicle designed to be towed by a motorized vehicle 
that contains a towing mechanism that is mounted above or forward of the tow vehicle's rear 
axle.  
 

(c) Motor home.  A recreational vehicle built on or permanently attached to a self-propelled 
motor vehicle chassis or on a chassis cab or van that is an integral part of the completed vehicle.  
 

(d) Recreational park trailer.  A recreational vehicle that meets the following criteria:  
 

(1) Built on a single chassis mounted on wheels. 
 
(2) Certified by the manufacturer as complying with ANSI (American National 

Standards Institute) A119.5. 
 

(e) Travel trailer. A recreational vehicle designed to be towed by a motorized vehicle 
containing a towing mechanism that is mounted behind the tow vehicle's bumper.  
 

(f) Truck camper. A recreational vehicle consisting of a roof, floor, and sides designed to 
be loaded onto and unloaded from the bed of a pickup truck.  
 
Recreational vehicle park (hereinafter referred to as “park”).  Any parcel of land development 

for the placement of recreational vehicles on a temporary basis, located and arranged on a tract of 
land which is less than ten (10) acres and which has been permitted for such purpose in compliance 
with this article, with the individual spaces being held under a common ownership and rented or 
leased to the occupants.  
 

Recreational vehicle resort (hereinafter referred to as “RV Resort”).  Any lot tract, or parcel 
of land ten (10) acres or more of unified development of recreational vehicle spaces provided for 
recreational vehicle use with community facilities and permitted permanent buildings developed 
for the placement of recreational vehicles on a temporary basis, located and arranged on a tract of 



land which has been permitted for such purpose in compliance with this article, with the individual 
spaces being held under a common ownership and rented or leased to the occupants. 

 
Site plan. A drawing showing the use of a parcel of land and the locations of existing and 

proposed buildings, drives, sidewalks, parking areas, drainage facilities, and other structures to be 
constructed in relation to surveyed boundaries, and are consistent with other City of Alvin existing 
ordinances (i.e. storm water drainage). 

 
Uninhabitable. Is limited to the deterioration to an RV that has created a dangerous or unsafe 

situation or condition, and the RV is not structurally sound in accordance with the certification by 
the manufacturer as complying with ANSI (American National Standards Institute), A119.2, 
A119.5 or the International Building Code as presently adopted by the city.  Uninhabitable RV's 
will not be allowed to remain within the city limits.  
 
Sec. 24½-90. – RV resort construction guidelines.  
 

 A pre-development meeting must be attended prior to permitting any new RV resort or re-
sale of an existing RV resort or park.  

 
(a) All new RV resorts must be located in a platted subdivision filed and recorded by the 

county clerk’s office.  If the site location is not a platted property, then it must be platted as outlined 
in Chapter 21, Subdivisions, of the City of Alvin Code of Ordinances. 

 
(a) All new RV resorts must submit three (3) sets of the site, landscape, and construction plans 

signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer, as outlined in Chapter 21-28, Site Plans, of the City 
of Alvin Code of Ordinances.   

 
(a) All new RV resorts must comply with Texas Architectural Barriers, and provide an ADA 

Project number with Plan Submittal. 
 
(a) All new RV resorts must submit a drainage plan as outlined in the drainage criteria set by 

the City of Alvin.  All RV resorts must have a storm drainage plan/system approved by the city 
engineer to be kept in city files, unless the storm drainage system has previously been approved 
and is on file with the city. 

 
(a) After completion and approval of all platting, site, drainage, and construction plans, the 

owner can then apply for permits to construct the RV resort. 
 
(a) Upon construction completion of the RV resort, the owner must submit to the Building 

Official or his designee a complete set of as-built construction plans on electronic media. 

Sec. 24½-91. – Alternative materials, equipment, and procedures 
 

The provisions of this article are not intended to prevent the use of any material method of 
construction, or installation procedure not specially prescribed by the ordinance, provided any such 
alternate is of equal or greater quality. Prior to use, sufficient evidence shall be submitted to the 
building official to substantiate any claims made regarding the safety of such alternates. Evidence 



shall also be required to show that the alternate material, method of construction or installation 
procedure will meet or exceed the level of health and safety protection provided by the standards 
of this article. All evidence shall be submitted to the building official and requires his or her written 
approval prior to use.  
 
Sec. 24½-92. – Recreational vehicles outside licensed RV resort or park. 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to reside in a recreational vehicle or to connect a recreational 
vehicle to the city's water or sanitary sewer system within the corporate limits of the city except in 
a licensed recreational vehicle resort or park as authorized under this article.  
 
Sec. 24½-93. – Emergency evacuation requirements. 
 

During a National Weather Service issued Hurricane Warning or alert periods, RVs shall be:  
 

(1) Removed from the corporate limits of the city; or 
(2) Stored securely in a permanent building which meets all the requirements of the applicable 

standard codes included in this Code.  
 

The RV park or resort owner shall provide the following minimum information to the 
occupants: 

 
(1) Informing the occupants of the advantage of evacuation prior to an evacuation order; 
(2) Providing staff and occupants with information about evacuation routes; and 
(3) Providing staff and occupants with a list of shelters.  

 
Sec. 24½-94. – Buffering. 
 

(a) RV resort property shall be buffered from other adjoining properties with earthen berms 
and/or landscaping.  If fencing is erected, it shall be made from brick, stone, masonry, wood, or 
wrought iron or black-clad cyclone, at least six (6) feet in height on the property.  The fence must 
be maintained in good repair as long as the RV resort remains in operation.   

 
(b) If an RV resort is adjacent to a lake as an amenity, the fencing requirement is not required 

along the lake side.   
 
Sec. 24½-95. – Size of RV resort density.  
 

The minimum size of a RV resort shall be ten (10) acres.  
  
Sec. 24½-96. – Office, restrooms, and other facilities; recreation area. 
 

(a) Each RV resort must have a building or buildings for an office for the manager of the RV 
resort, a bathroom and shower facilities, and laundry facilities.  All facilities used by occupants 
must be well lit inside and out.  All facilities must meet applicable codes adopted by the city. 

 



(b) Recreation areas include space for community buildings and community use facilities such 
as restroom and shower facilities, adult recreation (basketball court or tennis court), playgrounds 
for children, and swimming pools.  All RV resorts will have at least one (1) furnished recreation 
area club house located as to be free of traffic hazards, and easily accessible to all RV resort 
occupants.  Each club house can have a non-commercial kitchenette, as well as restrooms and a 
general seating area, stage area, exercise room, media/computer/business center, and attached 
patio, including a swimming pool, sauna, and hot tub. At a minimum, each RV resort will have 
one (1) swimming pool.  
 
Sec. 24½-97. – Soil and ground cover. 
 

Exposed ground surfaces in all parts of the RV resort shall be concrete or paved, or protected 
with vegetative cover that is capable of preventing soil erosion and eliminating dust.  All 
pavements shall be kept in good repair. 
 
Sec. 24½-98. – Landscaping. 
 

The RV resort owner or manager shall be responsible for maintaining the entire area of the RV 
resort free of dry brush, leaves, limbs, or weeds. 
  
Sec. 24½-99. – Storage, collection and disposal of refuse and garbage. 
 

The RV resort owner or manager shall pick up daily all refuse from each pad site or according 
to RV resort rules and regulations.  
  
Sec. 24½-100. – Water. 
 

(a) All water lines and connections must comply with city and state codes. 
 

(b) The RV resort owner or manager shall have complete maintenance responsibility for the 
water system within the RV resort. 

 
(c) The city has no maintenance responsibility for service lines within the RV resort.  The 

responsibility of the city stops at the property line. 
 

Sec. 24½-101. – Waste Water. 
 

All waste water lines and connections must comply with city and state codes.  Each RV resort 
shall be required to connect to city water and sewer mains.  
 
Sec. 24½-102. – Streets. 
 

(a) “No parking” signage must be installed and maintained along the entrance road to RV 
resort. 

 
(b) All internal streets shall be built in compliance with city standards.  



(c) All streets shall have standard street signs erected at appropriate points. 
 

(1) All lots, pads, or spaces shall be sequentially numbered and the numbers shall be 
displayed in a manner that is clearly visible from the street. 

 
(2) Adequate security lighting shall be provided to illuminate all common areas and RV 

lots. 
 

(3) Street lights shall be provided along all internal streets at a maximum spacing of three 
hundred (300) feet between lights and at all street intersections. 

 
(4) Directional lighting methods shall be used when installing building or street lights.  The 

direction of the light shall be downward.  Upward or outward lighting will not be acceptable.  
Directional lighting will prevent unnecessary or unwanted light spill over into adjacent areas 
or properties. 

 
Sec. 24½-103. – Parking. 
 

(a) A minimum of (one) 1 off street parking space shall be provided for each RV lot space. 
 

(b) Off-street parking areas must be provided for visitors and guests.  
 

(c) The minimum lot parking size shall be nine (9) feet in width by twenty (20) feet in depth 
and made of concrete.  
 
Sec. 24½-104. – Sidewalks. 
 

A pedestrian walkway plan shall be submitted in conjunction with the landscape plan.  
 
Sec. 24½- 105. – Electrical service. 
 

Each lot within the RV resort shall be provided with an approved electrical wiring system 
electrical service.  All electrical service shall be installed underground from the secondary meter 
to the lot and installed in accordance with the National Electrical Code.  All electrical distributions 
and connections must comply with applicable city and state codes.  
 
Sec. 24½-106. – Size of individual sites; pad requirements. 
 

Each recreational vehicle lot within the RV resort shall have a minimum area of nine hundred 
fifty (950) square feet.  
 
Sec. 24½-107. – Dumpsters. 
 

Garbage dumpster(s) shall be provided by the RV resort in the size and numbers appropriate 
for the number of lots.  The dumpster pad shall be constructed of concrete.  The fencing for the 



dumpster shall be constructed of CMU with heavy duty steel gating, and must not be easily 
recognized as a dumpster.  Pickup service shall be provided no less than once weekly. 
 
Sec. 24½- 108. – Rules and regulations for RV resorts and parks to be adopted by owner. 
 

(a) Each owner or his/her agent shall comply with all applicable regulations of the city.  In 
addition, it shall be the duty of the owner to prescribe rules and regulations for the management of 
the resort or park, to make adequate provisions for the enforcement of such rules, and to subscribe 
to all subsequent rules and regulations which may be adopted for the management of the resort or 
park.  Copies of all the rules and regulations shall be furnished to the building official upon request.   

(b) It shall be the duty of each owner or manager to keep a register containing a record of all 
visiting guests.  The register shall contain the following information:  

(1) The name and home address of the owner of each recreational vehicle or guest.  
(2) The make, model, year, license, and state of issue of tow vehicle, motor-powered 

recreational vehicle, and a copy of a valid driver’s license along with proof of insurance for 
guests.  

(3) The date of arrival and departure of each recreational vehicle or guest.  
(4) The location of each recreational vehicle within the resort by unit number and street 

address.  
(5) The name, address, and phone number of contact in case of emergency.(6) The 

register shall be kept available at all time for inspection by law enforcement officers.  
(c) Maintain current site map of the premises showing location, size, and depth of all utility, 

gas, or other lines within the RV resort.  
 
Sec. 24½-109. – License issuance. 
 

(a) License required.  It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a RV resort or park unless 
such person holds a valid license issued in the name of the person for a specific resort or park.  

(b) Application for license.  
(1) All applications for a license to operate an RV resort or park shall be on forms furnished 

by the city, signed by the applicant, and accompanied by the annual license fee.  The 
application shall contain the following:  

a. The name, address and contact phone number of the applicant.  If the applicant is 
not the owner of the premises on which the RV resort or park is located, the applicant shall 
provide the name and address of the owner with a copy of the lease between the applicant 
and the owner;  

b. The day and night phone number for the owner or manager;  
c. The RV resort or park’s street address; and  
d. The legal description of the RV resort or park.  



(2) If the applicant is not the owner, the applicant must be a lessee of the owner pursuant 
to a written lease having a remaining term (including any provisions for renewal and extension 
of such lease) of not less than the term for which the license will be issued.  

(3) The building official shall grant such application and issue a license to operate an RV 
resort or park to the applicant unless he or she finds the information contained in the application 
to be inaccurate.  

(4) The park must comply with all code standards prior to issuance of a license.  
(c) License fee.  Each resort or park shall pay an annual license fee in addition to a fee for each 

recreational vehicle lot as set forth in chapter 28.  
(d) License expiration.  The license shall expire on January 31 of each calendar year following 

the year in which it is issued.  All licenses shall be renewed on or before January 31 of each year.  
(e) Application for license renewal.  Each year a resort or park owner shall make application 

to renew a license to operate a resort or park and shall submit the annual license fee.  All terms of 
the initial license issuance applies to license renewal.  An application for a renewal license shall 
reflect any change in the information from the preceding application.  The building official shall 
grant such application unless the information contained therein is inaccurate or unless the building 
official believes that the licensee committed or allowed a violation of any provision of this article 
applicable to such resort or park to occur and which has not been corrected.  

(f) Renewal of suspended license prohibited.  A suspended license may not be renewed during 
the period for which it was suspended.  
 
Sec. 24½-110. – Transfer of license; fee. 
 

(a) Any person desiring to purchase an existing resort or park shall apply for a transfer of 
license on forms furnished by the city.  The transfer of license application shall be signed by the 
licensee and shall contain information as the building official may reasonably require to assure the 
building official that the resort or park is being and will be operated in compliance with all the 
requirements of this article.  The transfer of license application shall be accompanied by the license 
transfer fee as set forth in chapter 28.  

(b) A suspended license may not be transferred during the period for which it was suspended.  
 
Sec. 24½-111. – Appeal from denial of license. 
 

Any person whose application for a license to operate a RV resort or park is denied, or any 
person whose application to renew or transfer such license has been denied by the building official, 
may appeal to the Building Board of Adjustment & Appeals (BBOAA) and shall be granted a 
hearing on the matter.  The BBOAA shall affirm or reverse the denial of such application by the 
building official, by majority vote of its members present and voting at any regular or special 
meeting.  If the decision of the building official is reversed by the BBOAA, the building official 
shall issue the license or any renewal or transfer the same with such requirements as the majority 
of the BBOAA may reasonably require.  Any decision of the BBOAA in such appeal shall be final.  
 
 



Sec. 24½-112. – Maintenance and operation of RV resorts and parks 
 

(a)  Fire safety standards.  
(1) Storage and handling of liquefied petroleum gases.  In RV resorts and parks in which 

liquefied petroleum gases are stored and dispensed, their handling and storage shall comply 
with requirements of chapter 9.  

(2) Storage and handling of flammable liquids.  In RV resorts and parks in which gasoline, 
fuel, oil, or other flammable liquids are stored and/or dispensed, their handling and storage 
shall comply with the provisions of chapter 9.  

(3) Firefighting.  Approaches to all lots shall be kept clear at all times for access by 
firefighting equipment.  The RV resort or park shall provide an adequate water supply for fire 
department operations which shall be connected to the city’s public water supply system.  This 
shall include standard city fire hydrants located within three hundred (300) feet of all lots 
measured along the driveways and internal streets of the RV resort.  The fire hydrants shall be 
made available for periodic inspection by the city’s fire department and water department.  The 
adequacy of the water supply for firefighting shall be determined by state standards and the 
fire code adopted by the city.  

(4) Barbecue pits, fireplaces, and stoves.  All fireplaces, wood burning stoves, chimneys, 
chimeneas and other forms of outdoor cooking shall be located, constructed, maintained and 
used as to minimize fire hazards and smoke nuisance both in the area where used and in 
neighboring area of the RV resort or park.  No uncontained open fire shall be permitted in the 
RV resort or park.  

(5) Portable fire extinguishers.  Portable fire extinguishers shall be located throughout the 
RV resort or park in compliance with city ordinances and any applicable state or federal 
regulations.  

(6) Extension cords.  Extension cords shall not be permitted, except the electrical supply 
cord that is UL listed for recreational vehicles and complies with the fire code adopted by the 
city.  

(7) Fire department access.  All RV resorts and parks shall comply with the fire department 
access requirements of chapter 9.  
(b) Insect and rodent control.  Grounds, buildings, and structures shall be maintained free of 

insect and rodent harborage and infestation.  Extermination methods and other measures to control 
insects and rodents shall conform to the requirements of the city health official.  
 
Sec. 24½-113. – Telephone. 
 

A minimum of one (1) landline telephone shall be provided in an easily accessible location 
twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, for emergency use. 
 
  



Sec. 24½-114. – Accessory structures. 
 
The individual lots within RV resorts and parks, and/or individual RVs, are not allowed to have 

accessory structures as defined herein.  Additionally, all RVs must be removeable within one (1) 
hour notice by the RV resort or park owner or manager. 
 
Sec. 24½-115. – Sanitary facilities. 
 

Sanitary facilities shall be provided at amenity locations such as lakes, pools, spas, etc.  Such 
facilities must meet all requirements of the City of Alvin Ordinances. 
 
Sec. 24½-116. – Inspection of RV resorts and parks. 
 

(a) The building official, the health official, the fire chief, the chief of police or their respective 
authorized designees, shall have the right and are hereby directed at all reasonable times to enter 
upon any premises for which a license to operate a park has been issued for the purpose of 
determining satisfactory compliance with this chapter and all other applicable ordinances and laws.  
The official shall present proper identification upon request. 

(b) The RV resort owner or manager shall be responsible for insuring that all RV utility 
connections, common facilities, and grounds comply with this chapter. 

(c) RV resort or park owners and managers shall permit the building official to enter and 
inspect the RV resort or park, without prior notice, during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Saturday.  

(d) In case of emergency, where extreme hazards are known to exist that may involve 
imminent injury to persons, loss of life, or severe property damage, the building official may enter 
the premises at any time. The building official is hereby authorized to obtain a search warrant as 
provided by law if denied admission to inspect any such premises.  

Sec. 24½-117. – Penalty. 
 

Any person who violates any provision, restriction or requirement of this article shall be guilty 
of a misdemeanor which shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed the amount as prescribed by 
section 1-5. Each day of violation of this article shall constitute a separate offense. Prosecution in 
municipal court shall be in addition to other remedies provided in this article, by law, or in equity.  
 
Sec. 24½-118. – Violation; suspension; appeal. 
 

(a) Upon inspection of any resort or park, whenever the building official, the health officer, 
the fire chief, the chief of police, or their respective authorized designee, finds that conditions or 
practices exist at the resort or park which are in violation of any provision of this article, the 
building official shall issue to the owner of the resort or park or his or her agent a written notice 
setting forth each condition or practice that exists.  The notice shall inform the owner or his agent 
that unless the condition or practice is corrected or stopped within the time specified in the notice, 
the license to operate the resort or park shall be suspended.  The specified time for compliance 
shall be determined by the building official. At the end of the notice period, the building official 
shall re-inspect the resort or park and, if all conditions or practices stated in the notice have not 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level2/PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR.html#PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-5GEPECOVI
http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level2/PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR.html#PTIICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-5GEPECOVI


been corrected or stopped, the building official shall immediately suspend the license of the owner 
to operate the resort or park for the period of time the building official deems appropriate.  

 
(b) Any person whose license to operate a resort or park is suspended shall have the right to 

have the suspension reviewed by the BBOAA.  The BBOAA shall affirm or reverse the suspension 
of such license by the building official, by majority vote of its members present and voting at any 
regular or special meeting.  If the decision of the building official is reversed by the BBOAA, the 
BBOAA may either reinstate the license or suspend it for a lesser period of time than that for which 
it was suspended by the building official.  Any decision of the BBOAA in the appeal shall be final.  
 
Section 2. That except as amended herein all other provisions of Chapter 24½ of the Code of 
Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas, shall remain in full force and effect.  To the extent of any conflict 
or inconsistency between the provisions of this Ordinance and any other ordinance, the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall control. 
 
Section 3. Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, illegal, 
or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof ineffective or 
inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such section or part 
shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; but as to such 
remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and to this end the 
provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 4. Penalty Provision.  Any person, firm, corporation or business entity violating this 
Ordinance if deemed guilty, and upon conviction thereof shall be fined as set forth herein.  Each 
unlawful act or continuing day’s violation under this Ordinance shall constitute a separate 
offense.  The penal provision imposed under this Ordinance shall not preclude the City of Alvin 
from filing suit to enjoin the violation.  The City of Alvin retains all legal rights and remedies 
available to it pursuant to local, state and federal law. 
 
Section 5. Publication.  The City Secretary of the City of Alvin is hereby directed to publish this 
ordinance, or its caption and penalty clause, in one issue of the official City newspaper as required 
by the Charter of the City of Alvin, Texas. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 52, Texas Local Government Code 
and the City of Alvin Charter. 
 
Section 8. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code. 
 
  



PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading on the ______day of __________, 202019. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ______________________________  

Dixie Roberts, City Secretary          Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 


	City  Council Agenda 1/16/20
	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. 12/19/19 City Council Minutes
	B. Final Plat-Mustang Ridge Sec. 2
	C. Final Plat-Nickels 1462 Addition
	D. Final Plat- Warehouse Business Park
	E. License Agreement-Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation
	License Agreement
	Exhibit A-Map
	License Agreement- Red Line
	Alvin Sunrise Rotary Event Application
	Res. 14-R-37 Donation Agreement

	F. Resolution 20-R-01; Frontier Day Parade
	Resolution 20-R-01
	TxDot Multi-Year Agreement
	Notification Letter & Map

	G. Resolution 20-R-02; Home for the Holidays Parade
	Resolution 20-R-02
	TxDot Multi-Year Agreement
	Notification Letter & Map

	H. Agreement; Horizon International
	Horizon Proposal
	CIP Facilities Page 

	I. 2019 Quarterly Investment Report
	Investment Report
	Cash & Investments by Fund 


	OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Agreement; ESD #3
	Agreement

	B. Ordinance 20-B; Amend Chapter 24 1/2
	Ordinance 20-B
	Ordinance 20-B; Redline





